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1.

ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW AND EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT
South Yorkshire consists of four local authority areas of Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and
Sheffield, covers 599 square miles and has a mixture of both urban and rural areas. The
rivers running from the Pennines to the West of the county supported the steel manufacturing
industry with Sheffield once being the undisputed iron, steel and cutlery capital of the world.
The County has a number of areas of deprivation concentrated within what were originally
the mining communities and also within some of the urban areas of the city and townships.
The County has a population of just over 1.37 million (Office for National Statistics 2015) with
11.9% from a minority ethnic background (Census 2011). The elderly population is expected
to rise significantly over the next few years, the residential population is increased by
university students and the large numbers who visit, socialise in, commute into, or travel
through the County each year. The transport infrastructure includes major rail stations and an
airport.
The Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) population is increasing in size and diversity. In addition
to the African Caribean and South Asian community (Pakistani/Kashmiri/Indian/Bangladeshi)
who have been resident long-term, there has been an influx of other minority ethnic groups.
The largest increases in international communities within South Yorkshire are Polish, Asian
sub-continent, Chinese, Eastern European and Roma. A further increase has seen new
emerging communities from African and the Middle East. The main languages spoken by
these communities are Mandarin, Hindu, Urdu, Punjabi, Polish, Arabic, Roma, Lithuanian and
Romanian.
South Yorkshire Police is the thirteenth largest of the forty-four forces in England, Wales and
Northern Ireland. The Force area is divided into four policing districts, which are co-terminus
with the Metropolitan Boroughs. In addition, the Force has central departments that provide
specialist support services such as Joint Specialist Operations and Specialised Crime
Services which deal with threats posed by public disorder, firearms, child abuse, organised
crime together with planning around civil emergencies. These services whilst less visible than
front line policing are integral to meeting the Police and Crime Commissioner’s (PCC’s)
strategic policing priorities and the Force’s operational objectives.
The PCC’s Police and Crime Plan sets out the priorities for South Yorkshire Police. These
are the priorities that have emerged from the conversations the PCC has had with members
of the public both individuals and groups from every demographic, every ethnic and
community group, young and old, urban and rural, inner-city and outer suburb. The aim is for
South Yorkshire to be a safe place to live and for the police service to achieve this by:




Protecting vulnerable people
Tackling crime and anti-social behaviour
Treating people fairly

The 2016/17 financial year has been a challenging period for South Yorkshire Police. The
Hillsborough Inquests concluded with 96 unlawful killing verdicts, in the aftermath of which the
PCC suspended the Chief Constable in April 2016 who was subsequently removed from office
later in the year. A judical review determined the PCC’s decsions around this to be unlawful.
An interim Chief Constable was seconded to the post until 1 December 2016 when a
substantive Chief Constable was appointed. The National Crime Agency continues its work of
investigating the cases of Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) identified in the Jay report. South
Yorkshire Police now have a new Chief Constable, a largely new Senior Leadership Group
and a new sense of direction supported by appropriate resourcing in key areas such as
business change, performance and governance.
1

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17
NARRATIVE STATEMENT
Population Information
The mid 2015 population data for South Yorkshire as provided by the Office for National
Statistics is as follows:
Age Groups

Barnsley

Doncaster

Rotherham

Sheffield

0-9
10-19
20-29
30-39
40-49
50-59
60-69
70-79
80-89
90+
Grand Total

28,835
26,327
29,025
28,441
34,131
33,725
28,231
19,448
9,339
1,817
239,319

38,018
33,859
38,159
37,627
40,996
42,339
35,269
23,819
12,294
2,433
304,813

32,212
30,079
31,193
30,230
36,348
36,135
30,541
21,799
10,176
2,073
260,786

Total

67,366
68,114
106,479
70,820
73,391
65,419
53,074
39,455
21,021
4,598
569,737

166,431
158,379
204,856
167,118
184,866
177,618
147,115
104,521
52,830
10,921
1,374,655

The total population for White British and Black & Minority Ethnic (BME) groups in 2011 (from
Census) is as follows:
Area

Barnsley Doncaster Rotherham Sheffield

Total Population

231,221

302,402

257,280

552,698

1,343,601

96.1%

91.8%

91.9%

80.8%

88.1%

3.9%

8.2%

8.1%

19.2%

11.9%

% White British
% Black & Minority
Ethnic

Total

Staffing Information
The staffing information for the Force as at 31 March 2017 is as follows:
Full Time
Equivalent (FTE)
Police Officers
Police Community Support Officers
Police Staff
PCC
Total

Number of
employees

2,498

2,545

208

217

1,877

2,112

23

24

4,606

4,898

In addition the Force is supported by 268 Special Constables, 92 Police Cadets and 179
volunteers.
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2.

GOVERNANCE
The PCC and Chief Constable operate to a Joint Corporate Governance Framework which
has undergone review in 2016/17 consistent with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework
2016. The Force’s governance arrangements are fully detailed in its Annual Governance
Statement 2016/17.
In summary, South Yorkshire Police has an elected PCC who holds to account an
operationally independent Chief Constable. The Public Accountability Board, chaired by the
PCC and attended by his senior officers and those of the Force, is the main forum through
which he manages his statutory duties and responsibilities. Whilst the Chief Constable and
his Chief Officer colleagues attend this Board the day to day business of the Force is driven
by the Senior Leadership Group, chaired by the Chief Constable.
After reviewing governance matters for 2016/17, at the Senior Leadership Group, the Chief
Constable and Director of Finance have jointly signed the Annual Governance Statement
which schedules those concerns, recognised in 2016/17 which remain to be managed in
2017/18. In addition, the Statement gives a full account of the Force’s actions in addressing
matters which were identified prior to the beginning of 2016/17 as requiring improvement in
the year.

3.

ECONOMIC CLIMATE
The Chancellor announced the outcome of the spending review on 25 November 2015 and
stated that ‘the government will protect overall police spending in real terms over the spending
review period, an increase of £900m in cash terms by 2019/20. This will provide funding to
maintain overall police force budgets at current cash levels’.
The review also provided some PCCs with greater flexibility in their local funding decisions
by allowing those areas that have historically kept council tax levels low to increase the band
D council tax by £5. The 2015/16 council tax for policing in South Yorkshire was the eighth
lowest in England, therefore this ‘greater flexibility’ was available to the PCC for South
Yorkshire.
The final Police Finance Settlement for 2016/17, announced in December 2015 held some
funding back, as in previous years, to meet a number of national priorities. For South
Yorkshire this meant the potential for funding in areas such as special grant funding, counter
terrorism grant funding, innovation and transformation funding and emergency service
network funding.
As a result of the Finance Settlement the position for policing in South Yorkshire was that
funding from the Government, in respect of Police Grant and Formula Grant fell by
approximately £1m in 2016/17. The PCC utilised the provision of ‘greater flexibility’ to
increase the band D council tax by £5. This represented an increase of approximately 3.3%,
a band D council tax of £153.16 and a total council tax income of £51.569m for 2016/17. The
budgeted council tax income for 2016/17 was higher than that shown in the Finance
Settlement because of the actual increases in the council tax base and the collection fund
surplus, both of which were greater than assumed by the Home Office.
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With the inclusion of the collection fund surplus the approved budget requirement for 2016/17
was £241.963m as shown in the table below. This represented an increase in the budget
requirement of approximately 0.8% compared to 2015/16.

£000
Budget Requirement

£000

%

241,963

Sources of Finance
Department of Communities and Local Government Funding
Police Grant
Council Tax Freeze Grant 2011/12
Council Tax Support Grant
Collection Fund Surplus

(77,465)
(100,597)
(1,269)
(9,591)
(1,472) 78.7
5
.
9

Council Tax Income:

Barnsley

Doncaster

Rotherham

Sheffield

(9,225)
(11,804)
(10,284)
(20,256)

5
1

Total Financing
4.

(51,569) 21.3

(241,963)

100

REGIONAL WORKING / COLLABORATION
The PCC and the Chief Constable work with the other three Yorkshire and Humber region
PCCs and Chief Constables, of West Yorkshire, North Yorkshire and Humberside, to deliver
a number of services on a regional basis. These include Serious and Organised Crime,
Scientific Support and Underwater Search. The governance for the regional programme is
overseen by the Regional Collaboration Board headed by the four PCCs and attended by
their Chief Constables and Chief Executives. Since September 2013, individual forces have
been assigned lead force responsibility for each functional area of work. South Yorkshire
leads on Regional Procurement, Stores and Firearms. All work is fully funded from
contributions made by the four participating PCCs.
In addition, separate collaboration exists between the PCC and Chief Constable and their
counterparts in Humberside. The Forces have combined their Human Resources
departments and Information Services departments in order to increase capacity and further
reduce costs by standardising processes and support. South Yorkshire and Humberside
collaboration work is overseen by a Joint Collaboration Board headed by the two PCCs,
attended by senior officers of their respective offices and forces and supported by separate
Information Services and Human Resources Programme Boards. A Joint Special Operations
Unit providing roads policing, police dogs, mounted and other specialist functions was
established at the beginning of the year.
Further information on this area is included in the Accounting Policies and Notes to the
Financial Statements.
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5.

RISK MANAGEMENT
At the heart of the Force’s governance arrangements is a comprehensive and well
established approach to strategic risk management, the details of which are formally
reviewed, on a quarterly basis, by both the Senior Leadership Group and the Joint
Independent Audit Committee of South Yorkshire’s PCC and Chief Constable.
Each risk has: a clear description, an owner, a manager, a completion date and a
quanitifaction of the risk both before and after taking account of controls and identified risk
mitigations. Those risks which were current at 31 March 2017 comprised: Integrity and Ethics,
Hillsborough Inquest and Investigations, Implications of the Comprehensive Spending
Review, Child Sexual Exploitation, Doncaster Custody Suite Infrastructure, the Accurate
Recording of Crime and the subsequent Management of Force Performance, Potential Tax
Charges relating to the Loss of Protected Pension Age, Implementation of a Cyber Crime
Project which will support the Investigation of Cyber Crime, the Hi-Tech Crime Unit Backlog,
the Cold Case Review Team, risks surrounding the rollout of Emergency Services Network
technology and the performance of the Force’s call handling function at Atlas Court.
In many cases the above risks are long standing and the scores stable indicating that
mitigating controls are in place and working. Formal assessments of management confidence
are clear in demonstrating that there are no risks for which significant control gaps or
weaknesses exist.
In terms of the Accounts then, in line with all other forces, there is a significant pensions
liability. These reflect actuarial valuations of assets and liabilities in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19, in respect of both police pensions for police
officers and for police staff in the Local Government Pensions Scheme. The valuations for
police officers are provided by the Government Actuaries’ Department (GAD) and the
liabilities in connection with these are largely met by the Home Office.
Police staff are members of the South Yorkshire Pensions Fund. This is administered by the
South Yorkshire Pensions Authority and liabilities are met as they fall due. The Fund is
revalued by professional actuaries every three years when future contribution rates will be
set to recover any deficit position.
The Chief Constable has included the commitment to pay future retirement benefits as a
liability on the Balance Sheet to reflect the true accounting position even though these will
not be paid until many years into the future. The inclusion of this estimated liability of £3,280m
is matched by a Pensions Reserve within unusable reserves in the Balance Sheet. The
inclusion of this reserve has a substantial impact on the net liability of the Chief Constable
which is shown on the Balance Sheet as £3,284m. The net liabilities excluding these pensions
liabilities would be £4m. The treatment of this area is further explained in the Accounting
Policies and other Notes to the Financial Statements.

6.

FINANCIAL STRATEGY AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION
The Police Finance Settlement for 2017/18, published on 15 December 2016, reduced the
level of grant funding but figures relating to overall funding, including precept income,
assumed that PCCs would increase council tax by the maximum allowable and that the
council tax base would increase. Again ‘greater flexibility’ was available to PCCs with the
lowest council tax levels to increase the band D council tax by £5. As the council tax for
policing for South Yorkshire in 2016/17 was in the lowest 10 in England this ‘greater flexibility’
was available to the PCC for South Yorkshire.
The final settlement, announced in February 2017, confirmed that the level of grant funding
from the Government for South Yorkshire was reduced by approximately £2.5m for 2017/18
5
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compared to 2016/17. With the inclusion of the council tax requirement (an increase of £5
on band D properties) and the collection fund surplus the PCC approved a budget
requirement for 2017/18 of £242.287m an increase of approximately 0.13% compared to
2016/17.
As with 2016/17 the 2017/18 Finance Settlement was again only for one year, with the
proposed review of the Funding Formula mechanism being deferred to 2018/19. There are
no indicative allocations for individual PCCs beyond April 2018, therefore, it is anticipated that
reductions will continue but that such reductions will be offset by assumed increases in
council tax, combined with additional income from growth in the council tax base.
Future revenue budgets will need to include provision for pay awards, inflation and other
cost/demand pressures. Given the uncertainties in relation to legacy costs (Hillsborough and
CSE) it is prudent to assume, based on current forecasts, that budget provision for such costs
will be required at least up until 31 March 2020. The development of the medium term forecast
is subject to further proposals on additional savings for 2018/19 onwards. A provisional
assessment suggests further savings of about £3m will be required in 2018/19, although this
figure will change as a result of the delivery of the savings assumed in the 2017/18 budget
and a review of any further service investments that maybe required in 2018/19.
However, this provisional assessment suggests that cumulative savings of about £13m will
be required over the 4 years beyond 2017/18 as shown in the table below:
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
£m

7.

£m

£m

£m

Total forecast change in funding

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total forecast increased costs

3.02

4.68

8.13

12.93

NET FORECAST REVENUE GAP

3.02

4.68

8.13

12.93

Annual Forecast Gap

3.02

1.66

3.45

4.80

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
All forces are independently assessed in the public interest by HMIC (Her Majesty’s
Inspectorate of Constabulary). South Yorkshire Police in the 2016 inspection process was
given the rating of “Requires Improvement” in the three key inspection areas of Effectiveness
(How effective is the force at keeping people safe and reducing crime?), Efficiency (How
efficient is the force at keeping people safe and reducing crime?) and Legitimacy (How
legitimate is the force at keeping people safe and reducing crime?). The Force has considered
the recommendations made in these inspections and has already moved to implement the
appropriate action.
Nationally, the Crime Survey for England and Wales (independent of police recorded crime
volumes) shows that there has been no significant change in the levels of recorded crime
aside from an overall reduction in theft offences. In contrast police forces in England and
Wales have reported an increase of 11% nationally in volumes of recorded crime (data: 12
months to Dec 16), with South Yorkshire Police recording an increase in Victim Based Crime
for the 12 months to March 2017 of 17% (+15,991 offences). Nationally, the rationale for
increases has been reported as improvements to recording practices, process improvements,
6
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victim reporting increases and some genuine increases in some categories of crime. It is
difficult for forces to review and understand the influence of these factors, but there has been
some impact felt by the work undertaken in 2016/17 in South Yorkshire Police.
During the last 12 months, the Force has overhauled crime recording arrangements and
established a team to oversee these changes that has resulted in a considerable
enhancement in the ability of the Force to identify and record crimes that may have previously
gone unreported. The increase in South Yorkshire has been identified as linked largely to the
tightening of crime recording practices (impacting largely on violence without injury (+70%),
public order (+73%) and criminal damage offences (+6%), increases in reporting by victims in
under reported areas such as hate crime (+29%) and sexual offences (+18%), and some
small but genuine increases in lower volume category violence with injury (+12%), and some
increases in burglary (+23%) and robbery offences (+38%).
Whilst it is recognised that the Force is in a transitionary phase which will see the
establishment of dedicated neighbourhood patrol teams there is a great deal of preventative
work that takes place in the current operating model. Repeat demand locations have been
analysed and problem solving plans implemented to address the needs of each
location. Strategic leads have been established for reducing demand from hospitals, reducing
anti-social behaviour at fast food outlets and addressing issues within the night time economy.
To inform the future operating model the Force has conducted a comprehensive analysis of
the demand across the County. This has led to the identification of a number of priority Lower
Super Output Areas (LSOAs) across the Force where the demand is centred. This will allow
the Force to efficiently allocate proactive resources to the areas most in need and prevent
harm to the most vulnerable in society.
South Yorkshire Police has brought to justice 19,870 suspects in the reporting period or 16.3%
of all offences. Brought to justice refers to where a suspect receives any penalty for their
actions from being charged or summonsed to court to community resolutions. This is a decline
of 1,584 from the previous 12 months. A significant part of this is accounted for in the increase
in crimes recorded where the victim does not support or engage with a prosecution. This
accounts for 9.6% of all crime, or 10,468 offences, which is a significant increase of 4.1% over
the previous reporting period.
In 2016/17, between 77% and 81% of victims of crime in South Yorkshire (sampled from
victims of burglary dwelling, vehicle crime, violent crime and hate crimes) reported they were
at least Fairly Satisfied with the whole experience (62-66% Very Satisfied). Compared to the
previous 12 months, satisfaction has remained high for victims of Burglary Dwelling, but has
seen reductions for victims of vehicle offences and violent crime. In particular, these
reductions are impacted by low and declining satisfaction levels with follow up. This feedback
from victims will form a key part of the Force’s delivery plan in the forthcoming 12 month
period.
Of course, reported crime is not the only issue police forces deal with, with over 40% of all the
calls for service to the organisation in 2016/17 being linked to concern for Public Safety
(including concern / collapse suspicious circumstances, domestic incidents, missing persons)
and 16% related to anti-social behaviour (nuisance, personal and environmental). In total,
calls for service in to the organisation has increased by 3% during 2016/17, with over 478,000
reported incidents recorded on the Force’s incident management system in the last 12 months.
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Satisfaction Information (Victims of Crime)

8.

Local Policing
Unit (LPU)

Doncaster
Barnsley
Rotherham
Sheffield
FORCE

User Group

Burglary
Dwelling
Vehicle Crime
Violent Crime

Service
Aspect

The User Satisfaction Survey is a Home Office mandated survey managed by the Force
Performance Management Unit, with telephone interviews conducted by SMSR Ltd. The
Survey made contact with a sample of around 1,800 victims of violent crime, burglary dwelling
and vehicle crime over the year to establish their views in relation to the service they had
received from the Force. In 2016/17, 78% of victims surveyed were satisfied (i.e. “fairly”, “very”
or “completely”) with the overall service, a 6% point reduction on the 84% satisfaction in
2015/16. Results for 2016/17 are as follows:

Ease of Contact
Actions Taken
Follow Up
Treatment

Satisfied
351
325
333
422
1,431

Sample
458
427
430
522
1,837

% Satisfied
77%
76%
77%
81%
78%

518

569

91%

459
454

667
601

69%
76%

1,227
1,390
1,175
1,684

1,314
1,823
1,808
1,835

93%
76%
65%
92%

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Revenue Outturn
The Force’s budget for 2016/17 was approved by the PCC in February 2016, funded from a
combination of government grant, income raised from council tax and reserves. The police
grant reduction of £1m was more than offset by an increase in the council tax base and precept
when compared to the previous year.
The PCC set an increase in Band D Council Tax of £5 (a 3.3% increase) in line with the
maximum regarded by the Government as not being excessive. The additional income this
generated avoided making further reductions in spending and provided an element of stability
in the long term, the council tax income being consolidated into the base budget.
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Revised
Budget

Actual Variation

£000

£000

£000

Employee Costs

199,416

200,327

(911)

Premises Costs

7,901

7,104

797

Transport Costs

4,350

3,762

588

Supplies & Services Costs

14,928

13,339

1,589

Support & Agency Costs

12,939

13,141

(202)

30

30

-

(9,894)

(10,259)

365

7,202

6,484

718

236,872

233,928

2,944

-

29

(29)

Hillsborough Civil Claims

2,400

50

2,350

Child Sexual Exploitation Civil Claims

2,400

244

2,156

Operation Stovewood

2,400

5,296

(2,896)

Archive/Enquiry Team

-

179

(179)

244,072

239,726

4,346

Capital Financing Costs
Income
External Funding
Net Expenditure Before Legacy Issues
Hillsborough Inquests

Total Net Expenditure After Legacy Issues

The Chief Constable‘s actual revenue expenditure for the year was £239.7m. This figure was
before statutory accounting adjustments and is, therefore, not the same as that shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, though the two are reconciled later in
this document.
The Force’s actual expenditure represented a revenue underspend of £4.3m. The significant
variations can be explained as follows:
Employee Costs overspent by (£0.9m). Within this police officers pay and pensions
underspent by £3.4m. This was due to vacancies and incremental drift arising from the
difference in pay scale of probationer officers joining and replacing experienced officers who
had resigned or retired. This also included an additional £1.1m saving following the
implementation of the Joint Specialist Operations Unit collaboration with Humberside Police.
Police officer overtime was overspent by (£2.5m) as a consequence of resilience issues in
Atlas Communications, the effect of vacancies within districts and Specialist Crime Services
and special events.
Police Community Support Officers’ pay was underspent by £0.3m because of the timing
difference between leavers and recruitment.
Police staff pay was underspent by £2.3m due largely to force-wide vacancies.
Police staff overtime was overspent by (£0.5m) largely due to covering vacancies and staff
turnover, the majority being within Atlas Communications.
9
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Other employee expenses were overspent by (£3.9m) mainly due to the provision for voluntary
exit payments of £1.5m, legal costs of £1.0m and an overspend on ill health retirements of
£0.6m. Other overspends include agency staff and recruitment costs.
Premises underspent by £0.8m, the majority being underspends on energy and water costs.
Transport underspent by £0.6m, with fuel, vehicle parts and casual mileage being the main
contributors. These savings were expected and savings targets for fuel and casual mileage
have been set for 2017/18.
Supplies & Services underspent by £1.6m. The most significant was within the Information
Services Department of £0.8m, which includes unplanned credits and reductions in annual
contracts together with reduced spend on radio/airwave equipment and service charges. Other
areas contributing to the underspend include forensic analysis, scenes of crime and drug
testing on arrest consumables.
Hillsborough and CSE Civil Claims underspent by £4.5m. Hillsborough and CSE civil claims
were significantly less than budgeted and are expected to fall on future financial years.
Operation Stovewood overspent by (£2.9m). For 2016/17, the Force is liable to 15% of the
total cost of Stovewood, the National Crime Agency investigation into historic allegations of
abuse. This overspend reflects the full cost as the income due is accounted for in the PCC’s
accounts. Overall, Stovewood has underspent by £1.6m within the Group including the income
received within the PCC accounts.
The Force’s budget for 2016/17 required savings of £6.2m - £3.3m of permanent savings and
£2.9m of non-recurrent savings. The Force exceeded the permanent savings target by £1.1m
and overachieved non-recurrent savings by £1.1m (underspend before legacy costs and
external funding). Taking into account the provisions made for voluntary exit and legal
payments totalling £2.4m, the Force successfully achieved its planned underspend of £3.1m.
Revenue expenditure is reported in the accounts under the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement with a deficit of £642.1m. The table below shows how the revenue
outturn position varies from the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement deficit:
£000
Underspend as per budgeted outturn
Remove items included in budgeted outturn

(4,346)

Pension Contributions
Items not charged to Council Tax

(33,524)

Pension Interest

92,865

Accounting charges for pension and holiday pay

45,063

Top up grants, capital grants and other contributions

(45,232)

Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability re pensions

587,277

Total deficit on the Force Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

642,103
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Capital Outturn
The PCC owns all assets and controls decision making in relation to capital expenditure,
capital financing and borrowing.
A capital programme of £15.2m was approved in February 2016. During the year there were
a number of changes through projects that slipped from 2015/16 to 2016/17, that underspent
or overspent in year and that slipped from 2016/17 to 2017/18 resulting in a final capital outturn
of £11.9m in 2016/17, which is split as follows:


There was capital expenditure of £1.8m spent improving existing buildings.



£1m was spent on new vehicles purchased in accordance with the vehicle replacement
program.



£1.5m was spent on information, communications and operational equipment,
including joint projects with Humberside Police.



£7.7m was spent on assets under construction, of which £9.8m including prior year
assets were reclassified to operational use at the end of the year. £4m of the £7.7m
was spent on construction costs for the new Barnsley custody suite.

Reserves and Balances
The movements in the PCC’s usable reserves are summarised below:
1 April Movement
2016
in Year
Earmarked Reserves
Capital Grants Unapplied
General Reserves

31 March
2017

£000

£000

£000

22,730

6,026

28,756

49

(49)

-

17,597

37

17,634

40,376

6,014

46,390

There are a number of specific purposes for which reserves are required by the PCC over the
next few years and by earmarking these, there will be clarity around their future use and
general reserve levels can be maintained with more transparency. A detailed breakdown of
the movements in earmarked reserves is included in the Group accounts.
Treasury Management
Capital expenditure is financed by a combination of government grants, internal resources
such as capital receipts and direct revenue funding, with the balance coming from external
borrowing. The PCC is able to borrow to fund capital investment provided that he can
demonstrate that it is affordable and prudent in accordance with CIPFA’s Prudential Code.
The PCC approves an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement which includes
requirements and proposed arrangements for borrowing during the year.
The PCC’s total outstanding borrowing from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) as at 31
March 2017 is £42.9m compared with the PCC’s underlying need to borrow (capital financing
requirement – note 35 in the PCC accounts) of £50.8m. This means that at some point in the
future, the PCC is likely to need to borrow an additional £7.9m to ensure that he retains his
liquidity position.
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Sustainability
South Yorkshire Police is committed to sustainability and employs a Sustainability Manager,
supported by a network of Sustainability Champions, to develop and implement the Force
Sustainability Strategy. Key achievements include:

9.



Increasing the Force’s score in the Yorkshire and Humberside Business in the Community
Environment Index to 88% compared to 19% in 2010 and maintaining Silver status.



Reducing the Force’s carbon footprint by 37%, energy costs by 7.9%, waste by 1.9% and
fuel costs by 1% from last year.



Installing green energy technology to reduce carbon emissions and save money.
Technologies include solar panels, LED lights, biomass boilers, more efficient IT, free
cooling technology, the use of mobile data and connecting two buildings to low carbon
district heating networks in Sheffield.



Supporting and launching alternative staff travel initiatives. In 2016 the Force offered its
staff the chance to take part in Sheffield CycleBoost (funded by the government through
Sheffield Council) enabling them to loan a bike for free to try cycling to work.



Continuing to run a fleet of ten Vauxhall Amperas and planning to procure additional
electric vehicles to reduce emissions and improve the Fleet’s efficiency.



Maintaining the Force’s commitment to the principles of Eco-driving by teaching
appropriate techniques within the driver training programme.

OUTLOOK
The Final Police Settlement for 2017/18 was again only a one year grant settlement, which
makes it difficult to undertake medium term financial planning without making assumptions of
the potential levels of funding for years beyond 2017. Based on this Settlement for 2017/18,
it looks likely that grant from government will continue to reduce each year but that such
reductions will be offset by assumed increases in council tax combined with additional income
from growth in the council tax base. The PCC is continuing to work constructively with the
Chief Constable in the preparation of further cost reduction plans in order to be in a position
to respond strategically to any future reductions which are imposed.
The PCC increased the council tax for 2017/18 by £5 for a Band D property in accordance
with the funding assumptions set by the Home Office. There is also the intention to apply to
the Home Office for Special Grant Funding to meet the costs of legacy issues, which could
potentially amount to approximately £9m.
In May 2016 a Peer Review was commissioned by the PCC and the Interim Chief Constable
in order to establish more clearly the changes that need to be made within the Force and to
assist the new Chief Constable to understand some of the key challenges and opportunities.
In order to address the recommendations of the Peer Review and supporting
recommendations in the HMIC PEEL Inspections, the Chief Constable created a lead for
Change and Innovation at Assistant Chief Constable level to provide strategic direction and
oversight to the Force response. A new Business Change and Innovation Department has
been established with the capacity to effectively assess demand and determine the size and
scope of a new operation model to ensure that the Force is capable and resourced to meet
current and future demands. The Chief Constable has also developed a Force Strategic
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Delivery Plan to focus the development of the Force in enabling it to deliver against the Police
and Crime Plan.
With the level of funding for policing in South Yorkshire reducing the challenge is to ensure
that any additional costs that will be incurred in a financial year are offset by expenditure
reductions. It has been made clear in statements by the Minister for Policing that Forces will
have to meet increased costs by achieving greater levels of efficiencies. Savings proposals
have been identified in 2017/18 to offset additional costs including contributions from reserves
carried forward as a result of reduced spending in 2016/17. As an indication of the potential
impact of a reduction in funding, in 2017/18 a reduction of £1.7m would equate to the cost of
34 officers or 57 police staff. With employee costs representing a significant proportion of the
Force budget (approximately 90%) any reduction in funding is likely to have an impact on
number of officers or staff. There are opportunities for greater collaboration with Fire and
Rescue. The PCC is now on the board of the Fire and Rescue Authority. A Joint Collaboration
Board has been created to drive efficiencies and savings.
As at 31 March 2017 the overall level of revenue reserves, estimated to be available is
£38.9m. This includes general reserves of £17.6m and earmarked reserves of £21.2m
(excluding £7.5m earmarked for capital expenditure). The level of general reserves at 31
March 2017 includes planned underspends that have been carried forward for use in financing
expenditure in 2017/18. The approved budget for 2017/18 relies on a contribution from general
reserves of £7.8m to achieve a balanced budget. The earmarked reserve includes £10.6m in
the Insurance Reserve which is set aside to meet the costs of potential liabilities under the
current self-insurance arrangements and £6.3m carried forward from underspends in relation
to legacy costs to provide for the potential future costs of civil claims (Hillsborough, CSE and
potential Operation Stovewood expenditure).
10.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting. This follows International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to local authority accounts as
determined by Her Majesty’s Treasury.
The Statements reflect the current legislative framework, central to which is the Police Reform
and Social responsibility Act 2011.
Fundamentally, the PCC is responsible for the finances of the whole PCC Group and controls
the assets, the majority of liabilities and the reserves. The PCC receives all income and
funding and makes all payments from the PCC Police Fund. In turn, the Chief Constable has
a duty to fulfill prescribed functions under the the Police Reform and Social Responsibilty Act
2011 within the annual budget set by the PCC in consulation with the Chief Constable.
The Chief Constable’s Statement of Accounts consists of the following financial statements:


Movement in Reserves Statement: this shows the movement of reserves during the
year, analysed between usable and unusable reserves. The Chief Constable has no
usable reserves. Unusable reserves are those that have been created to reconcile the
accounting entries required to comply with the Code with those that must be statutorily
charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes. These cannot be
used to support local expenditure.



Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: this statement shows the cost
for the year of providing services. The PCC receives all income which is, therefore,
excluded from the Chief Constable’s Statement.
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Balance Sheet: this sets out the assets, liabilities and reserves of the Chief Constable as
at 31 March each year.



Cash Flow Statement: this summarises the movements in cash and cash equivalents
during the year. As all the changes in cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
PCC’s accounts, this statement simply shows the net surplus or deficit on the provision
of services adjusted for non-cash movements.



Statement of Accounting Policies: this sets out details of the accounting policies
adopted in compiling the Statement of Accounts.



Police Pension Fund Account: this sets out the position for the three Police Pension
Scheme (1987, 2006 and 2015) Fund Accounts as at 31 March each year.



Annual Governance Statement: this is published with the Accounts and sets out how
the Force complies with statutory corporate governance requirements.

Further information is included in the Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial
Statements.
11.

FURTHER INFORMATION
You can find more information about the finances of the Force on its website
www.southyorks.police.uk or by contacting:
Nigel J Hiller FCPFA FCCA
Director of Finance,
South Yorkshire Police,
Police Headquarters,
Carbrook House,
5, Carbrook Hall Road,
Sheffield,
S9 2EH
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The Chief Constable’s Responsibilities
The Chief Constable is required to:


make arrangements for the proper administration of the Force’s financial affairs and to ensure that
one officer has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. That officer is the Director
of Finance



manage the Force’s affairs to secure the economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
to safeguard its assets



approve the Statement of Accounts.

I approve this Statement of Accounts
Date: 26th September 2017

Stephen Watson, Chief Constable

The Director of Finance’s Responsibilities
The Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Chief Constable’s Statement of
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Director of Finance has:


selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently



made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent



complied with the Local Authority Code 2016/17.

The Director of Finance has also:


kept proper, up to date accounting records



taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

I certify that the attached Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Chief Constable as at 31 March 2017 and the Force’s income and expenditure
for the year then ended.

Nigel J Hiller FCPFA FCCA, Director of Finance
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

Balance at 1 April 2015

General Fund
Balance

Pension
Reserve
Accumulated
Absence
Reserve

Total Unusable
Reserves

Total Reserves

This statement shows the movement in the year of the different reserves held by the Chief Constable.
The majority of reserves are owned and managed by the PCC with the exception of the Pension
Reserve and Accumulated Absence Reserve, which are included in the Chief Constable’s statement
below for 2016/17.

£000

£000

£000

£000

-

£000

(2,997,554) (4,195) (3,001,749) (3,001,749)

Movement in Reserves during 2015/16
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

(74,682)

434,172

-

434,172

359,490

74,682

(75,010)

328

(74,682)

-

Net Increase / (Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves

-

359,162

328

359,490

359,490

Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves

-

-

-

-

-

Increase/(Decrease) in 2015/16

-

359,162

328

359,490

359,490

Balance at 31 March 2016 carried forward

-

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations (Note 7)

(2,638,392) (3,867) (2,642,259) (2,642,259)

Movement in Reserves during 2016/17
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

(54,826)

(587,277)

-

(587,277)

(642,103)

54,826

(54,913)

87

(54,826)

-

Net Increase / (Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves

-

(642,190)

87

(642,103)

(642,103)

Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves

-

-

-

-

-

Increase/(Decrease) in 2016/17

-

(642,190)

87

(642,103)

(642,103)

Balance at 31 March 2017 carried forward

-

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations (Note 7)
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
This statement shows the cost in the year of providing operational services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. All income is included in the PCC’s Income and Expenditure
Statement.
2015/16 Restated

2015/16
Gross
Expenditure

2016/17

Gross
Income

Net
Expenditure

Gross
Expenditure

Gross
Income

Net
Expenditure

£000
16,845
24,633
18,217
42,696
43,052
22,276
17,412
16,135
1,665
8,281
9,154
7,411
2,781
1,913
255
319
(1,348)
15,659
735
3,174
22,911

£000
-

£000
16,845
24,633
18,217
42,696
43,052
22,276
17,412
16,135
1,665
8,281
9,154
7,411
2,781
1,913
255
319
(1,348)
15,659
735
3,174
22,911

£000
15,162
22,181
16,855
38,956
40,834
18,409
16,828
17,041
4,160
9,664
10,471
7,454
2,690
2,101
889
619
(1,453)
14,624
155
5,647
18,237

£000
-

£000
15,162
22,181
16,855
38,956
40,834
18,409
16,828
17,041
4,160
9,664
10,471
7,454
2,690
2,101
889
619
(1,453)
14,624
155
5,647
18,237

274,176

-

274,176

261,524

-

261,524

(299,563)

-

(299,563)

(38,039)

-

(38,039)

92,865

-

92,865

54,826

-

54,826

(298,131)

-

(298,131)

(23,955)

-

(23,955)

98,637

-

98,637

74,682

-

74,682

Barnsley
Doncaster
Rotherham
Sheffield
Specialist Crime Services
Joint Specialist Operations Unit
Corporate Services
Contact Management
Corporate Finance
Facilities Management
Information Services
Human Resources
Professional Standards
Senior Leadership Group
Corporate Communications
Legal Services
Vehicle Fleet Management
Regional & Collaboration
Hillsborough Inquests
CSE / Operation Stovewood
Other
Total Financial Resources
Consumed
Intra Group Adjustment - funding
provided by the PCC for financial
resources consumed by the Chief
Constable
Net Cost of Policing Services
Financing and investment income
and expenditure (Note 9)

(434,172)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision
of Service
Remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liability (Note 19)

(434,172)

Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

587,277

(359,490)

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

642,103
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BALANCE SHEET AND CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet shows the assets, liabilities and reserves as at the year end. The net
assets/(liabilities) (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held. Usable reserves may be
used to fund services and are all held by the PCC. Unusable reserves cannot be used to provide
services and are used to reflect the accounting arrangements for retirement and employee benefits.
31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2017
£000

- Long Term Assets
- Total Long Term Assets

-

- Current Assets
- Total Current Assets

-

(3,867) Current Liabilities (Note 10)
(3,867) Total Current Liabilities

(3,780)
(3,780)

(2,638,392) Long Term Liabilities (Note 11)
(2,638,392) Total Long Term Liabilities

(3,280,582)
(3,280,582)

(2,642,259) Net Assets/(Liabilities)

(3,284,362)

- Usable Reserves
(2,642,259) Unusable Reserves (Note 12)
(2,642,259) Total Reserves

(3,284,362)
(3,284,362)

Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents during the reporting
period. The Chief Constable has only non-cash transactions as all receipts and payments go through
the Police Fund held by the PCC.
2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

74,682 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash
(74,682)
movements (Note 13)
- Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services that are investing and financing activities
- Proceeds from sale of property
- Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
- Investing Activities
- Financing Activities
- Net Increase or Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
- Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
- Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Reporting Period
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire Police’s
transactions for the 2016/17 financial year and the position as at the year end of 31 March
2017. The Force is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with
proper accounting practices by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. These
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016/17 (the Code), and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17, supported
by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

b)

Relationship Between the PCC and the Chief Constable for Accounting Purposes
The PCC and the Chief Constable are both required to prepare their own statutory accounts.
The South Yorkshire Group position, which reflects the consolidated position of both the PCC
and the Chief Constable, is included within the PCC’s Statement of Accounts.
The PCC is the holder of the Police Fund and all payments for the Group are made by the
PCC from the Fund. The PCC is also the recipient of all funding, including government grant,
precepts and other income and this is paid into the Fund. The Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for the PCC therefore includes all income received, analysed over the
relevant service lines.
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the Chief Constable includes all
the costs of operational policing. An intra-group adjustment is included in both the PCC’s and
Chief Constable’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to reflect the funding
provided by the PCC for financial resources consumed by the Chief Constable.
All assets, liabilities and reserves are held by the PCC and are therefore included within the
PCC’s Balance Sheet except for those relating to pensions and accrued employee benefits
which form part of the Chief Constable’s Balance Sheet (see paragraph (f) for further
explanation). Since the PCC has control over non-current assets, and therefore retains the
long-term risks and rewards of ownership, the charges to revenue for their use is included in
the PCC’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, analysed over the relevant
service lines.

c)

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year in which it takes place, not simply when cash payments
are made or received. This means that:


Supplies and services are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Where there
is a gap between the date significant supplies are received and their consumption, they
are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet of the PCC.



Income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year
in which it is earned.



Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not yet been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the PCC’s Balance
Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is reduced and
a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
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d)

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, that is, in
the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or when the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of
transactions, other events and conditions on the financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
always been applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

e)

Exceptional Items
When items of income and expenditure are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the Notes
to the Accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
performance.

f)

Employee Benefits
Transactions relating to employee benefits are included in the financial statements of either
the PCC or the Chief Constable according to where the direction and control of those
employees lies.
Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.
They include salaries, paid annual leave, flexitime and other non-monetary benefits such as
cars. They are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service. An
accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements and other forms of leave, such as time off
in lieu, earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in the
following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The
accrual is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and then reversed out through the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the
financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision to terminate employment
before their normal retirement date or where an employee decides to accept voluntary
redundancy. These are charged on an accruals basis to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when there is a demonstrable commitment to the termination of the
employment of an employee or group of employees.
When termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable to the Pension Fund or
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from
the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement
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termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the Pension Fund and
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.
Retirement Benefits
Employees of the Chief Constable participate in the following pensions schemes:


The 1987, 2006 and 2015 Police Pension Schemes (PPS) for police officers are unfunded
schemes, which means that there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions
liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet the actual payments as they fall due. The
PCC is required by legislation to operate a Pension Fund with the amounts that must be
paid into or out of the Pension Fund being specified by regulation. The former Police
Authority set up a Pension Fund on 1 April 2006 from which pensions payments are made
and into which contributions, from the PCC and employees, are received. The PCC then
receives a top-up grant from the Government equal to the sum by which the amount
payable for pensions from the Pension Fund exceeds the amount receivable from the PCC
into the Pension Fund. The Pension Fund is shown separately in the Accounts.



The latest Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) pension scheme which was
introduced on 1 April 2015. This moves away from the ‘final salary’ arrangements of the
1987 and 2006 schemes, and is as a result of Lord Hutton’s independent review of public
service pensions.



The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for police staff, administered by the
South Yorkshire Pensions Authority, is a funded scheme, which means that the PCC and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the
pensions liabilities with investment assets.

The above schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as employees work. They are accounted for in accordance with the
requirements for defined benefits schemes, based on the principle that an organisation should
account for retirement benefits when it is committed to give them, even though this may be
paid many years into the future.
A pensions asset or liability is recognised in the Balance Sheet, made up of the net position
of retirement liabilities and pension scheme assets. Retirement liabilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method, by assessing the future payments that will be
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions
about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and estimations of projected earnings for
current employees. Pension scheme assets (LGPS only) attributable to the PCC are included
at their fair value. There is currently a net pensions liability and this is matched in the Balance
Sheet by a Pensions Reserve.
The change in net pensions liability during the year is analysed into several components:


current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of service earned by employees
in the current year. This is charged to services within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.



past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions, the effect
of which relates to service earned in earlier years. This is charged to services within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.



net interest on the net defined benefit liability – the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time. This is calculated by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period, taking into account
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any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payments. This is charged to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.




Remeasurements comprising:
o

the return on plan assets (LGPS only) – this excludes amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability and is charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

o

actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions. This is charged to the
Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expendture.

Contributions paid / benefits paid – cash paid as the employer’s contribution by the PCC
either to LGPS or directly to pensioners to reduce the scheme liabilities.

Statutory provisions require that the amount charged to the General Fund Balance is that
payable to pensions funds rather than that calculated under accounting standards. This
means that an appropriation to or from the Pensions Reserve is done within the Movement in
Reserves Statement to replace the notional sums for retirement benefits with the actual
pensions costs. The negative balance on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the
beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on
the basis of cash flow rather than as benefits are earned by employees.
g)

Regional Working
The PCC and Chief Constable engage with the other Yorkshire and Humber region PCCs and
Chief Constables to deliver a number of services on a regional basis. The governance of this
regional programme is undertaken by a Regional Collaboration Board headed by the four
PCCs and attended by their Chief Executives and the Chief Constables.
From September 2013 each functional area is now being delivered via a Lead Force model.
In addition a separate collaboration exists between the PCC and Chief Constable and their
counterparts in Humberside. South Yorkshire Police and Humberside Police have combined
their Human Resources departments and Information Services departments in order to
increase capacity and further reduce costs by standardising processes and support. This
collaboration is overseen by a Joint Collaboration Board headed by the two PCCs, and
supported by Programme Boards for each function.
The above collaboration with Humberside Police has been treated as a joint operation,
therefore in order to comply with IFRS11 Joint Arrangements, the Group Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement only reflects South Yorkshire Police’s share of the income
and expenditure.
Each force recognises only its share of any jointly procured fixed assets. South Yorkshire acts
as lead administration force for the collaboration arrangement and as such fully recognises
any liabilities with a corresponding debtor for Humberside PCC for their share of the costs, as
at the balance sheet date.
The Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement incorporates the costs of
regional working together with any income received or recharged. Assets owned by the PCC
but contributing to regional working are retained on the PCC’s Balance Sheet.
More information is included in Note 20.
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h)

Foreign Currency Translation
Where a transaction has been entered into in a foreign currency, the transaction is converted
into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was made.

i)

VAT
The Chief Constable does not submit a VAT return as the PCC submits a single VAT return
on behalf of the Group. Income and expenditure is shown in these accounts as excluding
amounts related to VAT, as all VAT collected is payable to the HM Revenue and Customs and
all VAT paid is recoverable from them.

j)

Events After the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts
is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:


those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period –
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events



those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would
have a material affect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.
k)

Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Not Yet Adopted
The Code requires that information is disclosed relating to the impact of any accounting
standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted.
There are no standards that have been issued but not yet adopted that will result in a change
in accounting policy from 1 April 2017.

l)

Reserves
The Chief Constable does not hold any usable reserves. However, unusable reserves are
kept to reflect the accounting arrangements for retirement and employee benefits.
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2.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the PCC and Chief Constable are
required to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving
uncertainty about future events. In applying the revised accounting arrangements, a number
of judgements have been made with regard to the financial statements.




3.

The Chief Constable’s Financial Statements include:
o

all the operational costs of policing within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account

o

all IAS19 pensions transactions in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account and pensions liabilities together with Pensions Reserve in the Balance
Sheet

o

the accrual for employee benefits and the matching Accumulated Absence
Account in the Balance Sheet.

The PCC’s Financial Statements include:
o

all other assets, liabilities and reserves within the Balance Sheet

o

accounting entries relating to IAS19 pensions transactions for the PCC’s staff who
are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme in the financial statements

o

the charge to revenue for the use of non-current assets, including depreciation,
revaluation and impairment and amortisation of intangible assets within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account

o

all income within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

CHANGES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The 2015/16 statements have been restated due to the introduction of the Expenditure and
Funding Analysis to the 2016/17 Code. The changes to the 2016/17 Code are:

4.



To allow local authorities to report on the same basis as they are organised by breaking
the formal link between the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) and the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.



To introduce a new Expenditure and Funding Analysis which provides a direct
reconciliation between the way local authorities are funded and prepare the budget and
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in a way that is clear to the reader.
This analysis is supported by a streamlined Movement in Reserves Statement and
replaces the segmental reporting note.

ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made
about the future. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends
and other relevant factors. However, because figures cannot be determined with certainty,
actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.
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The items in the Chief Constable’s Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017 for which there is a
significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming year are as follows:
Item

Uncertainty

Effect if Actual Results Differ
from Assumptions

Pensions
Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions is extremely volatile as it
depends on a number of complex
judgements relating to the discount
rate used, the rate at which salaries
are projected to increase, changes in
retirement ages, mortality rates and
expected returns on pension fund
assets.

Whilst the effects on the net
pensions liability of changes in
individual assumptions can be
measured, the assumptions
interact in complex ways.

Actuaries are engaged to provide
expert advice about the assumptions
to be applied for each of the pension
schemes.

5.

During 2016/17, the Actuaries
advised that the net pensions
liability had increased by
approximately £587m as a result of
estimates being revised and
updating financial and
demographic assumptions. This is
reported on the Chief Constable’s
Income and Expenditure and
further information is provided at
Note 19.

MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENSE
The Chief Constable’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement includes costs
incurred of £5.646m during 2016/17 relating to CSE. Special grant claim income has been
received of £4.922m which is included in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
The Chief Constable’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also includes new
additional provisions totalling £2.417m for Voluntary Exit Scheme for Police Officers and Legal
Claims.
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6.

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS
This note shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government
grants, rents and council tax) in comparison with those resources consumed or earned in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure
is allocated for decision making purposes between the districts, services and departments.
2015/16

2016/17

Net
Expenditure
Chargeable
to the
General
Fund

Adjustments
between the
Funding and
Accounting
Basis

Net
Expenditure
in the
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement

£000
15,027
21,959
16,310
38,117
38,423
20,308
16,122
15,040
1,592
8,139
8,815
6,608
2,527
1,761
232
304
(1,442)
15,184
727
3,167
16,840

£000
1,818
2,674
1,907
4,579
4,629
1,968
1,290
1,095
73
142
339
803
254
152
23
15
94
475
8
7
6,071

£000
16,845
24,633
18,217
42,696
43,052
22,276
17,412
16,135
1,665
8,281
9,154
7,411
2,781
1,913
255
319
(1,348)
15,659
735
3,174
22,911

245,760

28,416

274,176

Barnsley
Doncaster
Rotherham
Sheffield
Specialist Crime Services
Joint Specialist Operations Unit
Corporate Services
Contact Management
Corporate Finance
Facilities Management
Information Services
Human Resources
Professional Standards
Senior Leadership Group
Corporate Communications
Legal Services
Vehicle Fleet Management
Regional & Collaboration
Hillsborough Inquests
CSE / Operation Stovewood
Other
Net Cost of Services

Net
Expenditure
Chargeable
to the
General
Fund

Adjustments
between the
Funding and
Accounting
Basis

Net
Expenditure
in the
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement

£000
14,351
21,105
16,013
37,000
39,002
17,795
16,266
16,514
4,105
9,608
10,327
7,095
2,575
2,023
797
607
(1,490)
14,436
152
5,645
16,059

£000
811
1,076
842
1,956
1,832
614
562
527
55
56
144
359
115
78
92
12
37
188
3
2
2,178

£000
15,162
22,181
16,855
38,956
40,834
18,409
16,828
17,041
4,160
9,664
10,471
7,454
2,690
2,101
889
619
(1,453)
14,624
155
5,647
18,237

249,985

11,539

261,524

(249,985)

(49,578)

(299,563)

-

92,865

92,865

54,826

54,826

(245,760)

(52,371)

(298,131)

-

98,637

98,637

Intra-group adjustment – funding
provided by the PCC for financial
resources consumed by the Chief
Constable
Other Operating Expenditure

-

74,682

74,682

(Surplus) or Deficit

-

Opening General Fund

-

-

Less/Plus Surplus or (Deficit) on
General Fund in Year
Closing General Fund at 31
March
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7.

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement recognised by the Chief Constable in the year.

Adjustments from General Fund to
arrive at the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement amounts

Adjustments for
Capital Purposes

Net change for the
Pensions
Adjustments

Other Differences

Total Adjustments

2015/16

2016/17

2015/16

2016/17

2015/16

2016/17

2015/16

2016/17

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Barnsley

-

-

1,898

799

(80)

12

1,818

811

Doncaster

-

-

2,693

1,123

(19)

(47)

2,674

1,076

Rotherham

-

-

2,006

853

(98)

(11)

1,908

842

Sheffield

-

-

4,686

1,998

(107)

(42)

4,579

1,956

Specialist Crime Services

-

-

4,554

1,936

74

(104)

4,628

1,832

Joint Specialist Operations Unit

-

-

2,087

795

(119)

(181)

1,968

614

Corporate Services

-

-

1,299

582

(9)

(20)

1,290

562

Contact Management

-

-

1,194

509

(99)

18

1,095

527

Corporate Finance

-

-

45

49

28

6

73

55

Facilities Management

-

-

148

54

(6)

2

142

56

Information Services

-

-

322

138

15

6

337

144

Human Resources

-

-

739

289

64

70

803

359

Professional Standards

-

-

262

115

(8)

-

254

115

Senior Leadership Group

-

-

153

57

(1)

21

152

78

Corporate Communications

-

-

15

17

8

75

23

92

Legal Services

-

-

11

10

4

2

15

12

Vehicle Fleet Management

-

-

98

35

(4)

2

94

37

Regional & Collaboration

-

-

482

167

(6)

21

476

188

Hillsborough Inquests

-

-

8

3

-

-

8

3

CSE / Operation Stovewood

-

-

8

2

-

-

8

2

Other

-

-

6,036

2,095

35

83

6,071

2,178

Net Cost of Services

-

-

28,744

11,626

(328)

(87)

28,416

11,539

-

-

(52,371)

(49,578)

-

-

(52,371)

(49,578)

-

-

98,637

92,865

-

-

98,637

92,865

-

-

75,010

54,913

(328)

(87)

74,682

54,826

Intra-group adjustment – funding
provided by the PCC for financial
resources consumed by the Chief
Constable
Other Operating Expenditure from
the Funding Analysis
Difference between the General
Fund surplus or deficit and the
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement Surplus
or Deficit
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8.

SUBJECTIVE ANALYSIS
This note shows expenditure, for the Force, split by type rather than by district, service and
department.

Expenditure
2015/16

2016/17

£000

£000

Employee Costs

235,231

216,980

Premises Costs

7,047

7,295

Transport Costs

3,441

3,889

Supplies and Services Cost

15,260

14,753

Agency

13,197

18,577

Capital Charges & Impairment of Assets

-

30

Income

-

-

274,176

261,524

(298,131)

(299,563)

(23,955)

(38,039)

Cost of Services
Intra-Group Adjustment
Net Cost of Policing Services

9.

FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
31 March
2016
£000

10.

31 March
2017
£000

98,637

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions
assets

92,865

98,637

Total

92,865

CURRENT LIABILITIES
31 March
2016
£000

31 March
2017
£000

3,867

Other entities and individuals

3,780

3,867

Total

3,780
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11.

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
31 March
2016
£000

31 March
2017
£000

2,638,392

Pension Liability

3,280,582

2,638,392

Total

3,280,582

The Pensions Liability represents the net position of retirement liabilities and the pension
scheme assets and is matched by the Pensions Reserve (Note 12)
12.

UNUSABLE RESERVES
31 March
2016
£000
(3,867)

31 March
2017
£000
Accumulated Absences Account

(3,780)

(2,638,392)

Pensions Reserve

(3,280,582)

(2,642,259)

Total

(3,284,362)

Pensions Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing difference arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with
statutory provisions.
The Chief Constable accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees. The amounts included
represent accrued years of service, inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns
on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require
benefits earned to be financed, as employers’ contributions are made to pension funds or
eventually direct pensions are paid.
The balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits
earned by past and current employees and the resources set aside to meet them. The
statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.

29

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
The transactions on the Pensions Reserve are as follows:
2015/16
£000
(2,997,554)
434,138
34
(162,334)

87,324
(2,638,392)

2016/17
£000
(2,638,392)

Balance at 1 April
Actuarial gains or (losses) on the pensions assets and liabilities
Adjustment between the group to correct the opening and
closing balances
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year
Balance at 31 March

(587,277)
(138,015)

83,102
(3,280,582)

Accumulated Absences Account
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on
the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in
the year, for example annual leave entitlement carried forward as at 31 March. Statutory
arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers
to or from this Account.
2015/16
£000
(4,195)
328
-

328

(3,867)

13.

2016/17
£000
(3,867)

Balance at 1 April
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of preceding
year

87

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different
from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements
Balance at 31 March

-

87

(3,780)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT – ADJUSTMENTS FOR NON-CASH MOVEMENT
2015/16
£000
328

2016/17
£000
Decrease in creditors

87

(75,010)

Movement in pensions liability

(54,913)

(74,682)

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on provision of
services for non-cash movements

(54,826)
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OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION AND NUMBERS

Chief Constable – D Crompton
(to 29 September 2016)

Other
Payments

Total
Remuneration

Pension
Contribution

£

£

£

£

£

£

Total

Benefits in
Kind

2016/17

Expenses

The remuneration paid to senior officers employed by South Yorkshire in 2016/17 is as follows:
Salary, Fees
and
Allowances

14.

£

143,916

-

2,570

-

146,486

-

146,486

48,988

-

3,798

6,750

59,536

11,855

71,391

Deputy Chief Constable – D Copley

131,225

-

4,991

19,143

155,359

30,559

185,918

Acting Deputy Chief Constable
(from 8 August 2016 to 4 December
2016)

24,849

-

-

-

24,849

3,621

28,470

Assistant Chief Constable – Territorial
Operations (to 1 June 2016)

19,154

-

1,716

-

20,870

4,497

25,367

2,322

-

-

-

2,322

545

2,867

83,652

-

2,421

-

86,073

19,750

105,823

68,043

-

-

-

68,043

14,064

82,107

23,889

-

873

-

24,762

5,621

30,383

ACC seconded to College of Policing
(in post since 14 July 2014)

118,348

-

1,311

-

119,659

26,457

146,116

Director of Finance

114,993

820

5,448

-

121,261

12,994

134,255

Chief Constable – S Watson
(from 1 December 2016)

Assistant Chief Constable –
Specialist Operations
(to 4 April 2016)
Temporary Assistant Chief Constable
– Territorial Operations
(from 25 April 2016 to 7 August 2016
then 5 December 2016 to 31 March
2017)
Temporary Assistant Chief Constable
– Specialist Operations
(from 25 April 2016 to 11 December
2016)
Assistant Chief Constable – SCS
(from 9 January 2017)

Notes


The post Assistant Chief Officer (Human Resources) is not shown in the table above as
the post is shared with Humberside Police. South Yorkshire Police pay for 50% (£90,467)
of the employee’s costs as part of the collaborative shared service for Human Resources.



The cost of the ACC seconded to College of Policing was reimbursed in full.
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The cost of a temporary Assistant Chief Constable (25 July 2016 to 4 January 2017) from
West Yorkshire Police was £56,369.



The cost of a temporary Assistant Chief Constable (12 December 2016 to 31 March 2017)
from Greater Manchester Police was £39,540.

2015/16

£

£

£

£

£

Total

The cost of a temporary Assistant Chief Constable (3 May 2016 to 24 July 2016) from
North Yorkshire Police was £33,808.

Pension
Contribution



Total
Remuneration

The cost of an interim Chief Constable (25 July 2016 to 30 November 2016) from Durham
Constabulary was £68,171.

Benefits in
Kind



Expenses

The cost of a temporary Chief Constable (3 May 2016 to 24 July 2016) from North
Yorkshire Police was £43,717.

Salary, Fees
and
Allowances



£

Chief Constable – D Crompton

159,477

-

2,671

162,148

15,523

177,671

Deputy Chief Constable
(to 16 March 2016)

137,291

-

5,077

142,368

28,250

170,618

Deputy Chief Constable
(from 19 October 2015)

57,397

-

2,241

59,638

13,440

73,078

104,676

-

3,229

107,905

23,746

131,651

Assistant Chief Constable –
Specialist Operations

104,143

-

1,248

105,391

23,582

128,973

ACC seconded to College of Policing
(in post since 14 July 2014)

121,697

-

4,212

125,909

21,206

147,115

Director of Finance

114,324

310

6,461

121,095

12,690

133,785

Assistant Chief Constable – Territorial
Operations

Notes


The post Assistant Chief Officer (Human Resources) is not shown in the table above as
the post is shared with Humberside Police. South Yorkshire Police pay for 50% (£80,600)
of the employee’s costs as part of the collaborative shared service for Human Resources.



There was an overlap of the Deputy Chief Constable post due to retirement on 16 March
2016.



The cost of the ACC seconded to College of Policing was reimbursed in full.
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The Force’s employees (officers and staff), including the senior employees identified in note
14, receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension
contributions but including expenses) were paid the following amounts:
2015/16
Number

2016/17
Number

£

106

50,000 -

54,999

145

83

55,000 -

59,999

76

31

60,000 -

64,999

38

9

65,000 -

69,999

10

10

70,000 -

74,999

10

1

75,000 -

79,999

7

5

80,000 -

84,999

5

8

85,000 -

89,999

5

-

90,000 -

94,999

1

-

95,000 -

99,999

1

-

100,000 -

104,999

-

1

105,000 -

109,999

-

1

110,000 -

114,999

1

-

115,000 - 119,999

1

2

120,000 - 124,999

1

-

125,000 - 129,999

-

-

130,000 - 134,999

-

-

135,000 -

139,999

-

1

140,000 - 144,999

-

-

145,000 - 149,999

1

-

150,000 - 154,999

-

-

155,000 - 159,999

1

1

160,000 - 164,999

-

259

303

A number of employees work in shared services with other regional forces. Disclosure of such
employees is made in the accounts of the force that holds the employment contract of those
individuals.
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The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of compulsory and other
departures are set out in the table below.
Exit package cost
band
(including
special payments)

Number of
compulsory
redundancies
2015/16

2016/17

Number of other
departures
agreed

Total number of
exit packages
per cost band

Total cost of
exit packages in
each band

2015/16

2015/16

2015/16

2016/17

£000

£000

2016/17

2016/17

£0 - £20,000

-

-

99

5

99

5

1,108

70

£20,001 - £40,000

2

-

41

11

43

11

1,197

342

£40,001 - £60,000

-

-

12

15

12

15

541

720

£60,001 - £80,000

-

-

7

5

7

5

535

329

£80,001 - £100,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

£100,001 - £120,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

£120,001 - £140,000

-

-

-

1

-

1

-

132

2

-

159

37

161

37

3,381

1,593

The total costs in the above table include all exit packages that were paid or agreed in each
year.
15.

TERMINATION BENEFITS
Costs shown in Note 14 on exit packages include a number of termination payments. During
2016/17, there were 2 staff whose contracts were terminated as part of the voluntary early
release scheme / exit package at a cost of £0.135m compared to 159 employees at a cost of
£3.372m in 2015/16. These all related to police staff. There were no compulsory redundancies
in 2016/17, (£0.009m in 2015/16). Costs in 2016/17 relating to a police officer voluntary exit
scheme amounted to £1.458m and 35 employees (£0m in 2015/16).

16.

EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS
The Chief Constable has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement
of Accounts undertaken by its external auditors, KPMG.
2015/16

2016/17

£000

£000

19

Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the
appointed auditor for the year

-

Fees due relating to prior years

-

Fees payable in respect of other services provided during the year –
NFI/Pensions mortality screening/IAS charges

19

19
(31)
17
5
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17.

RELATED PARTIES
The Chief Constable is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies
or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Force or to be controlled or
influenced by the Force. Disclosure of these transactions allows an assessment of the extent
to which the Chief Constable might have been constrained in his ability to operate
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely
with the Force.
Central Government
Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Chief
Constable. It is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Chief
Constable operates, provides the majority of funding in the form of grants and prescribes the
terms of many of the transactions that the Chief Constable has with other parties.
Officers
Certain officers might also be in a position to influence significantly the policies of the Chief
Constable. No material related party transactions have been identified following consultation
with relevant officers.

18.

LEASES
Operating Leases
The PCC currently has operating leases for some properties, computer equipment and a small
number of vehicles. These are used by the Chief Constable and the future minimum lease
payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:
31 March
2016

31 March
2017

£000

£000

402

Not later than one year

345

540

Later than one year and not later than five years

861

942

35

Later than five years
Total

1,241

The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during
the year in relation to these leases was £0.402m in 2016/17 (£0.404m in 2015/16).
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19.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES
Participation in Pensions Schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its employees, the PCC makes
contributions towards the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not
actually be payable until employees retire, the PCC has a commitment to make the payments
and this needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.
The Force participates in four pension schemes as explained in the Accounting Policies:
Pension schemes for police officers (PPS 1987, 2006 and 2015) and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for support staff, administered by the South Yorkshire Pensions
Authority.
Injury awards are payable irrespective of whether a police officer is a member of the Pension
Scheme and tax rules from 1 April 2006 prevent injury awards from being part of pension
scheme regulations. Injury awards have been moved into a separate Police Compensation
Scheme (PCS) and under the pensions financial arrangements they must be paid from the
PCC’s operating account and not the Pension Fund Account. The injury awards have been
accounted for as part of the pensions adjustments and information relating to these injury
awards are disclosed separately in the following notes.
Transactions relating to Post Employment Benefits
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits
are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required against council tax is based
on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment / retirement benefits is
reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following
transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:
2016/17

PPS
1987

PPS
2006

PPS
2015

PCS

LGPS

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

19,080

310

14,420

920

10,366

45,096

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Cost of Services


Current service cost



Past service cost

-

-

-

50

-

50



Curtailments

-

-

-

-

4

4

83,960

2,360

1,060

1,920

3,565

92,865

103,040

2,670

15,480

2,890

13,935

138,015

Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure


Net interest expense

Total post employment benefit charged to
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services
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2016/17

PPS
1987

PPS
2006

PPS
2015

PCS

LGPS

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

-

-

-

-

(33,114)

(33,114)

- (5,890)

(3,353)

(56,653)

Other post employment benefit charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability comprising:


Return on plan assets (excluding the
amount included in the net interest
expense)



Actuarial gains and losses arising on
changes in demographic assumptions

(47,410)

-



Actuarial gains and losses arising on
changes in financial assumptions

526,000

31,950

17,540

10,470

109,383

695,343



Experience gains and losses

(7,860)

80

(850)

140

(9,809)

(18,299)

573,770

34,700

32,170

7,610

77,042

725,292

(103,040)

(2,670)

11,919

167

11,876

-

7,752

31,714

-

-

-

1,810

-

1,810

68,481

(437)

(18,466)

-

-

49,578

Total post employment benefit charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account
Movement in Reserves Statement


Reversal of net charges to Surplus or
Deficit for the Provision of Services for
post employment benefits in accordance
with the Code

(15,480) (2,890)

(13,935) (138,015)

Actual amount charged against the General
Fund Balance for pensions in the year


Employer’s contribution payable



Retirement benefits payable to pensioners



Additional contribution to Police Pension
Fund Account to balance deficit
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Comparative figures for 2015/16 are:
2015/16

PPS
1987

PPS
2006

PPS
2015

PCS

LGPS

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

29,820

460

14,560

2,470

11,721

59,031

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Cost of Services


Current service cost



Past service cost

-

-

40

44

84



Curtailments

-

-

-

979

979



Transfer between PCC and CC in year

-

-

-

3,603

3,603

90,200

2,270

340

2,090

3,737

98,637

120,020

2,730

14,900

4,600

20,084

162,334

-

-

-

-

6,361

6,361

(300)

(630)

-

(43,110)

Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure


Net interest expense

Total post employment benefit charged to
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Other post employment benefit charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability comprising:


Return on plan assets (excluding the
amount included in the net interest
expense)



Actuarial gains and losses arising on
changes in demographic assumptions

(41,070)

(1,110)



Actuarial gains and losses arising on
changes in financial assumptions

(228,830)

(15,210)

(1,670) (4,820)

(25,470) (276,000)



Experience gains and losses

(136,200)

11,120

470 (5,830)

- (130,440)



Other

9,174

31

(276,906)

(2,439)

13,403 (6,681)

819 (271,804)

(120,020)

(2,730)

(14,900) (4,600)

(20,084) (162,334)

13,279

248

10,820

-

8,617

32,964

-

-

-

1,989

-

1,989

69,636

(461)

(16,804)

-

-

52,371

Total post employment benefit charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account

3

(1)

(156)

9,051

Movement in Reserves Statement


Reversal of net charges to Surplus or
Deficit for the Provision of Services for
post employment benefits in accordance
with the Code

Actual amount charged against the General
Fund Balance for pensions in the year


Employer’s contribution payable



Retirement benefits payable to pensioners



Additional contribution to Police Pension
Fund Account to balance deficit
38

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Pensions Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the PCC’s obligation in respect of its
defined benefit plans is as follows:
PPS
1987

31 March 2017

Present value of defined benefit obligation

PPS
2015

PCS

LGPS

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

2,888,810

101,190

58,150

60,260

477,687

-

-

-

-

(305,515)

2,888,810

101,190

58,150

60,260

172,172

PPS
2015

PCS

LGPS

Fair value of plan assets
Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation

PPS
2006

Comparative figures for 2015/16 are:
PPS
1987

31 March 2016

Present value of defined benefit obligation

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

2,395,440

66,220

19,390

54,460

362,058

-

-

-

-

(259,176)

2,395,440

66,220

19,390

54,460

102,882

Fair value of plan assets
Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation

PPS
2006

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of the LGPS (Plan) Assets
31 March
2016

31 March
2017

£000

£000

244,037
8,680
(6,206)

Opening fair value of scheme assets at 1 April

259,176
9,403

Interest income
Remeasurement (gains) and losses - return on plan assets

33,114

8,618

Contributions from employer

7,752

3,306

Contributions from employees into the scheme

3,121

(8,558)

Benefits paid

(6,858)

9,500

Transfer between PCC and CC in year

(201)

Administration expenses

259,176

(193)

Closing fair value of scheme assets at 31 March
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Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)
PPS
1987

2016/17

PPS
2006

PPS
2015

PCS

LGPS

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

2,395,440

66,220

19,390

54,460

362,058

Current service cost

19,080

310

14,420

920

10,173

Interest cost

83,960

2,360

1,060

1,920

12,968

5,620

310

6,640

-

3,121

Opening balance at 1 April

Contributions from Scheme participants
Remeasurement (gains) and losses


actuarial gains/losses arising from changes
in demographic assumptions

(47,410)

-

-

(5,890)

(3,353)



actuarial gains/losses arising from changes
in financial assumptions

526,000

31,950

17,540

10,470

109,383



experience gains and losses

(7,860)

80

(850)

140

(9,809)

-

-

-

50

-

Benefits paid

(86,020)

(450)

(50)

(1,810)

(6,858)

Curtailments

-

-

-

-

4

2,888,810

101,190

58,150

60,260

477,687

PPS
2006

PPS
2015

Past service cost

Closing balance at 31 March

Comparative figures for 2015/16 are:
PPS
1987

2015/16

PCS

LGPS

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

2,755,260

68,450

-

63,130

354,751

Current service cost

29,820

460

14,560

2,470

11,520

Interest cost

90,200

2,270

340

2,090

12,417

6,760

150

5,990

-

3,306

Opening balance at 1 April

Contributions from Scheme participants
Remeasurement (gains) and losses


actuarial gains/losses arising from changes
in demographic assumptions

(41,070)

(1,110)

(300)

(630)

-



actuarial gains/losses arising from changes
in financial assumptions

(228,830)

(15,210)

(1,670)

(4,820)

(25,470)



experience gains and losses

(127,026)

11,151

473

(5,831)

-

Adjustment between the group to correct the
opening and closing balances
Past service cost

(34)
-

-

-

40

44

Benefits paid

(89,674)

59

(3)

(1,989)

(8,558)

Curtailments

-

-

-

-

979

Transfer between PCC and CC in year

-

-

-

-

13,103

2,395,440

66,220

19,390

54,460

362,058

Closing balance at 31 March
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Local Government Pension Scheme Assets comprise:
31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2017

%

£000

%

54,718

17.9

131,524

43.1

186,242

61.0

-

-

35,256

11.5

8,310

2.7

13,534

4.4

5,469

1.8

62,569

20.4

24,716

8.1

3,911

1.3

28,627

9.4

23,250

7.6

23,250

7.6

4,827

1.6

4,827

1.6

305,515

100.0

Equities
46,729

18.0



UK quoted

102,660

39.6



Overseas quoted

149,389

57.6
Bonds

104

-



UK Government fixed

31,049

12.0



UK Government indexed

7,050

2.7



Overseas Government fixed

12,803

4.9



UK other

3,551

1.4



Overseas other

54,557

21.0
Property

26,280

10.1



UK direct

4,017

1.6



Property funds

30,297

11.7
Alternatives

20,397

7.9

20,397

7.9



Pooled investment vehicles

Cash
4,536

1.8

4,536

1.8

259,176

100.0



Cash accounts

Total scheme assets

All scheme assets have quoted prices in active markets except pooled investment vehicles.
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Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method,
which is an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on
assumptions including mortality rates, employee turnover and salary levels. The liabilities of
the Police Pension and Compensation Schemes have been assessed by the Government
Actuary’s Department (GAD). The LGPS fund liabilities have been assessed by Mercer, the
PCC’s actuary using estimates based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March
2017.
The significant assumptions used by the Actuaries have been:
2015/16
PPS

2016/17

LGPS

PPS

LGPS

Mortality Assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners (in years)
25.1

25.4



Men

25.2

25.1

27.2

28.5



Women

27.3

28.0

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners (in years)
23.1

23.0



Men

23.2

22.9

25.1

25.7



Women

25.2

25.7

Financial Assumptions:
3.55%

3.60%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

2.65%

2.60%

2.20%

2.00%

Rate of inflation (CPI)

2.35%

2.20%

2.20%

2.00%

Rate of increase in pensions

2.35%

2.20%

3.60%

2.00%

Rate of CARE revaluation

3.45%

2.20%

4.20%

3.75%

Rate of increase in salaries (long term)

4.35%

3.45%

1.00%

1.00%

Rate of increase in salaries (short term to 31/03/2020)

1.00%

1.00%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set
out in the above table. The sensitivity analyses in the following tables have been provided by
the Actuaries and have been determined based on reasonably possible changes in
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period. They assume for each change that
the assumption analysed changes while other assumptions remain constant. In practice, this
is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The
estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme,
that is on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used
in the previous period.
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Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Schemes
PPS

Increase / (Decrease)
1987
2006
Scheme
Scheme

Assumption Group

Longevity - increase by one year

2015
Scheme

PPS

£000

£000

£000

£000

75,400

2,100

1,300

1,700
300

Rate of increase in salaries – increase by 0.5%

27,700

7,600

-

Rate of increase in pensions – increase by 0.5%

257,100

10,500

10,900

4,700

(268,900)

(16,900)

(9,100)

(5,100)

(4,100)

(400)

900

-

Rate of discounting scheme liabilities – increase by 0.5%
Retirement – increase by one year longer
LGPS

Increase / (Decrease)

Assumption

£000

Longevity - increase by one year

8.979

Rate of inflation – increase by 0.1%

12,500

Rate of increase in salaries – increase by 0.1%
Rate of discounting scheme liabilities – increase by 0.1%

3,006
(12,181)

Impact on the PCC’s Cash Flows
An objective of the LGPS is to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as possible.
The strategy agreed by the Pension Authority with the Actuary is to achieve a funding level of
100% over the next 19 years. The next triennial valuation is due on 31 March 2019 with an
effective date of 1 April 2020. The contributions in respect of the police pension schemes are
determined by the Government.
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the PCC has in the long run to pay
employment benefits. The total liability of £3,282.9m for Group (£3,280.6m for Chief
Constable) has a substantial impact on the net worth of the PCC as recorded in the Group
Balance Sheet, resulting in a negative overall Group balance of £3,199.4m.
However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the
PCC remains manageable:


the deficit on the LGPS will be made good by increased contributions as assessed by the
scheme actuary.



the actual payment costs of normal retirement is met by the police pension schemes,
based in part on the Force contributing a fixed percentage amount on officer salary costs
to the Home Office.

The total contribution expected to be made to the LGPS by the PCC in the year to 31 March
2018 is £9.1m relating to the Chief Constable. Expected contributions for the Police Pensions
Schemes in the year to 31 March 2018 are £24.1m relating to the Chief Constable. The
weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is:


LGPS – 26 years



PPS 1987 – 20 years, 2006 – 38 years, 2015 – 35 years
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20.

REGIONAL WORKING
The PCC and Chief Constable engage with the other Yorkshire and Humber region PCCs and
Chief Constables to deliver a number of services on a regional basis. The Regional
Collaboration Programme was developed to bring opportunities across many policing
activities whilst retaining local identity and accountability.
Since September 2013, a Lead Force model was adopted for each functional area of regional
collaboration, with the Regional Collaboration Board retaining the responsibility for the
governance arrangements. South Yorkshire is the lead force for Regional Procurement and
Regional Firearms, and during 2014/15 took lead force responsibility for Regional Stores. It
provides all the financial administration necessary to ensure that the costs are properly
captured and fully recharged to the four participating PCCs and Chief Constables.
The lead force arrangements have been reviewed against IFRS 11 on Joint Arrangements
and it has been determined that they fall outside the scope of a joint operation.
The summary position for these services is detailed in the memorandum below.
Stores
2016/17
£000

Procurement
2016/17
£000

Firearms
2016/17
£000

Staff costs

272

1,684

142

Property related expenses

133

26

-

24

76

-

6

60

-

435

1,846

142

Other reimbursed income

-

(239)

-

Contributions (see below)

(434)

(1,624)

(138)

Income

(434)

(1,863)

(138)

1

(17)

4

(91)

(284)

(25)

North Yorkshire Police

-

(229)

(20)

South Yorkshire Police

(131)

(418)

(36)

West Yorkshire Police

(212)

(657)

(57)

Humberside PCC

-

(12)

-

North Yorkshire PCC

-

(12)

-

West Yorkshire PCC

-

(12)

-

(434)

(1,624)

(138)

(1)

17

(4)

2016/17

Supplies and services
Transport related expenses
Expenditure

Deficit/(Surplus) in year
Contributions
Humberside Police

Total

Release from Regional Reserve
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Comparative Figures for 2015/16 are as follows.
Stores
2015/16
£000

Procurement
2015/16
£000

Firearms
2015/16
£000

Staff costs

266

1,542

138

Property related expenses

139

28

-

3

61

-

10

43

-

418

1,674

138

Other reimbursed income

-

(201)

-

Contributions (see below)

(418)

(1,473)

(138)

Income
Capital contribution

(418)
(165)

(1,674)
-

(138)
-

Deficit/(Surplus) in year

(165)

-

-

(121)

(244)

(25)

North Yorkshire Police

-

(192)

(19)

South Yorkshire Police

(180)

(422)

(37)

West Yorkshire Police

(282)

(567)

(57)

Humberside PCC

-

(12)

-

North Yorkshire PCC

-

(12)

-

South Yorkshire PCC

-

(12)

-

West Yorkshire PCC

-

(12)

-

(583)

(1,473)

(138)

165

-

-

2015/16

Supplies and services
Transport related expenses
Expenditure

Contributions
Humberside Police

Total

Release from Regional Reserve
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The table below shows the contributions made in 2016/17 by the South Yorkshire PCC, to
those services for which other regional forces are the lead force.

Regional Service

Lead Force Responsibility

Underwater/Marine
Crime Scene Investigators
External Forensics
Scientific Support
People Protection
Investigative Command and Overheads
Intelligence Unit
Confidential Unit
Covert
Prison Intelligence Unit
Collision Investigation Unit
Fraud
Crime Unit
Scenes Of Crime Unit
Cyber Crime

Humberside Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police
West Yorkshire Police

2016/17
Contribution
£000
131
1,655
2,066
2,252
110
222
141
304
25
235
82
228
271
133
73

The Force has collaborative working arrangements with Humberside for the joint services of
Human Resources (HR) and Information Services (IS). Each of these ventures has a
collaboration agreement under Section 22A of the Police Act 1996 covering the main
responsibilities. The costs of each are shared based on the total size of the respective Force
budgets, assessed using a measure of “net revenue expenditure” (NRE).
This joint collaborative arrangement with Humberside PCC is treated as a joint operation
under IFRS 11, with only South Yorkshire PCC’s share of income and expenditure being
recognised in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The PCC entered into a collaborative arrangement with Humberside PCC for the Joint
Specialist Operations Unit (JSOU) from 1 April 2016. The costs are shared based on the total
size of the respective force budgets, assessed using a measure of NRE. This collaborative
arrangement is based on a “host force model” with staff and officers remaining employed by
the host force. Non-pay costs are incurred and income recognised by both forces with
adjustments being made to reflect the adjusted NRE splits for both expenditure and income.
The JSOU collaboration with Humberside PCC is treated as a joint operation under IFRS 11,
with only South Yorkshire PCCs share of income and expenditure being recognised in the
Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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The table below shows the total costs of the collaborative working arrangements and the
relevant share of the costs and percentage allocations of the costs for Human Resources,
Information Services and JSOU.

Human
Resources

Information
Services

JSOU

2016/17
£000

2016/17
£000

2016/17
£000

10,446

5,307

21,765

4

5

264

Supplies and services

447

4,092

519

Transport related expenses

378

201

570

4

-

(2)

Expenditure

11,279

9,605

23,116

Grant income

-

-

-

(11,220)

(9,604)

(22,551)

(59)

(1)

(565)

(11,279)

(9,605)

(23,116)

-

-

-

Humberside Police

(4,615)

(4,137)

(9,275)

South Yorkshire Police

(6,605)

(5,467)

(13,276)

(11,220)

(9,604)

(22,551)

Humberside Police % share of costs

41.13%

43.07%

41.13%

South Yorkshire Police % share of costs

58.87%

56.93%

58.87%

Staff costs
Property related expenses

Third party costs

Contributions (see below)
Other income
Income
Deficit/(Surplus) in year
Contributions

Total
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The comparative data for 2015/16 is shown below:
Human
Resources

Information
Services

2015/16
£000

2015/16
£000

9,603

4,447

2

5

Supplies and services

470

2,411

Transport related expenses

365

174

-

-

Expenditure

10,440

7,037

Grant income

-

(333)

(10,340)

(6,703)

(100)

(1)

(10,440)

(7,037)

-

-

Humberside Police

(4,253)

(2,973)

South Yorkshire Police

(6,087)

(3,730)

(10,340)

(6,703)

Humberside Police % share of costs

41.13%

44.36%

South Yorkshire Police % share of costs

58.87%

55.64%

Staff costs
Property related expenses

Third party costs

Contributions (see below)
Other income
Income
Deficit/(Surplus) in year
Contributions

Total

21.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Finance Officer for the Force
on 26 May 2017. Events taking place after that date are not reflected in the financial
statements or notes. However, where events after this date provide information about
conditions existing at the 31 March 2017, the figures in the financial statements and notes
have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
In relation to any potential future liabilities following the Hillsborough Inquests and any
outcomes from CSE / Operation Stovewood, please refer to the Group accounts.
There is a post balance sheet event in relation to a refund of output tax overpaid on the sale
of police seized vehicles for auction and scrap totalling £216,000. This relates to the period
April 2015 – March 2017 and has not been included in the 2016/17 accounts.
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2015/16
£000
£000

2016/17
£000
£000
Contributions Receivable
From the PCC

(19,836)



Normal

(1,811)



Early retirements

(1,696)

Officers’ Contributions

(12,264)

(12,893)

(18,977)

(34,540)

(32,937)

(444) Transfers In from Other Schemes

(358)

Benefits Payable
62,388

 Pensions

65,033

27,137

 Commutations and lump sum retirement benefits

20,224



75

189

Death benefits

89,600

85,446
Payments to and on account of Leavers

13

 Refunds of contributions

442

455  Transfers out to other schemes
55,071 Net Amount Payable for the year

(52,370) Additional Contribution from the PCC (via Home Office)
(2,701) Additional Contribution from the PCC

10
-

10
52,161

(49,578)
(2,583)

- Net Amount Payable / Receivable for Year

-

NET ASSETS STATEMENT
31 MARCH
2016
£000

31 MARCH
2017
£000
Current Assets

243  Contributions due from the PCC

295

139  Contributions due from officers

167

(314)  Amount owing from General Fund
-  Pensions paid in advance
Current Liabilities
(68) 

(5,103)
4,641

-

Unpaid pensions benefits

- TOTAL

-

The payroll date for police officers fell on the 26 March 2017 so there was an adjustment for
five days for 2016/17. For 2015/16 there was an adjustment for four days.
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Notes to the Pension Fund Account
The Police Pension Fund Account is operated in accordance with the Police Pension Fund
Regulations 2007 (SI 2007 No 1932), which specifies the amounts that must be paid into and
out of the Fund. The Chief Constable administers the Fund Account on behalf of the PCC
although no cash is transacted by the Chief Constable, with all payments and receipts being
made by the PCC.
An employer’s contribution is paid into the Fund, together with contributions from employees
who are members of the Police Pensions Schemes. The contribution rates are based on
percentages of pensionable pay, as determined nationally by the Government and subject to
triennial revaluation by the Government Actuary’s Department. The current contribution rates
are:

1987 Scheme = 35.55% to 36.35% (21.3% for the employer and 14.25% to
15.05% for employees),



2006 Scheme = 32.30% to 34.05% (21.3% for the employer and 11% to
12.75% for employees),



2015 Scheme = 33.74% to 35.08% (21.3% for the employer and 12.44% to
13.78% for employees).

The actuarial valuation has set the employer contribution rate for all three police pension
schemes from 1 April 2015 at 21.3% of pensionable pay. The difference between the old
employer contribution rate of 24.2% and the new rate will be retained by the Government. This
means that the police pensions top up grant will be reduced by the difference between the
contribution rates of 24.2% and 21.3%. Therefore, the reduction of 2.9% is payable via local
PCC budget for 2016/17. Treatment of the revised employer contribution rate in future years
is to be confirmed in due course.
Payments are also made into the Fund in respect of ill health retirements.
The schemes are unfunded which means that there are no investment assets built up to meet
pensions payments. The Pension Fund Account is therefore balanced to nil each year by a
transfer from the PCC’s General Fund which then receives a top-up grant from the
Government if contributions are insufficient to meet the defined pensions benefits payable.
Any surpluses on the Fund are repayable to the Government.
The accounting policies adopted for the Pension Fund follow those set out in the Statement
of Accounting Policies (Note 1). However the Net Assets Statement does not include liabilities
to pay pensions and other benefits after the Balance Sheet date. These are dealt with within
the Group Financial Statements in accordance with the application of International Accounting
Standard 19 - Retirement Benefits.
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Independent auditor’s report to the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire
We have audited the financial statements of the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire for the year ended
31 March 2017 on pages 16 to 50. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2016/17.
This report is made solely to the Chief Constable, as the corporation sole, in accordance with Part 5
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Chief Constable, as the corporation sole, those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Chief Constable, as the corporation sole, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of the Director of Finance and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Director of Finance’s Responsibilities, the Director of
Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, and for being satisfied that the financial
statements give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Chief Constable’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Director of Finance; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Statement to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constable as at 31 March 2017 and
of the Chief Constable’s expenditure and income for the year then ended;
 have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
The Code of Audit Practice requires us to report to you if:
 the Annual Governance Statement set out on pages 54 to 70 does not reflect compliance with
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ (CIPFA/SOLACE 2016
Edition); or
 the information given in the Narrative Statement for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is not consistent with the financial statements; or
51

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CHIEF CONSTABLE OF SOUTH
YORKSHIRE




any matters have been reported in the public interest under Section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of, the audit; or
any recommendations have been made under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014; or
any other special powers of the auditor have been exercised under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Conclusion on the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
Chief Constable’s responsibilities
The Chief Constable is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance,
and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities
We are required under Section 20(1) (c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy
ourselves that the Chief Constable has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in their use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General (C&AG) requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements.
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the
Chief Constable has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in their use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered,
whether all aspects of the Chief Constable’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in their use of resources are operating effectively.
Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the
guidance on the specified criterion issued by C&AG in November 2016, as to whether the Chief
Constable of South Yorkshire had proper arrangements to ensure they took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and
local people. The C&AG determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code
of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire put in place
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources for
the year ended 31 March 2017.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment,
we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant
respects, the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire had put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources.
Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in November 2016, we
are satisfied that, in all significant respects, the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2017.
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Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Chief Constable of
South Yorkshire in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and the Code of Audit Practice.
Rashpal Khangura
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
1 Sovereign Square
Leeds
LS1 4DA
28th September 2017
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Annual Governance Statement 2016/17
1.

What is Corporate Governance?

1.1

Corporate governance refers to the process by which organisations are directed, controlled,
led and held to account. In other words, Corporate Governance is how we make sure we do
things properly.

1.2

Each year the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) and Chief Constable (CC) are required
to produce an Annual Governance Statement. The Annual Governance Statement is the
formal mechanism used to report on the effectiveness of the internal control and decision
making systems. This Annual Governance Statement complies with the reporting
requirements contained in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting and
accompanies the accounts for the financial year. The document describes the governance
arrangements in place over the last 12 months and sets out areas for improvement for the
year ahead.

2.

The Purpose of the Joint Corporate Governance Framework

2.1

The PCC and CC work to a common Framework which describes how the PCC and the CC
will do business together.

2.2

The Framework comprises the culture, values, systems and processes by which the CC
delivers cost effective, value for money, services to the Community in line with the PCC’s
Police and Crime Plan. A copy of the Framework is available on the CC’s website or by writing
to the Chief Constable, Carbrook House, Carbrook Hall Road, Sheffield S9 2EH.

2.3

The system of internal control is a significant part of the Framework, and is designed to
manage and reduce risk to a reasonable level. It can, however, provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance of the effectiveness. The system of internal control is a continuous
process, designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement of the CC’s policies, aims
and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they happen, and to manage them economically, efficiently and effectively.

2.4

This Framework needs to be formally updated to reflect the principles of the CIPFA ‘Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government: Framework’ and the associated ‘Guidance Notes for
Policing Bodies in England and Wales’, both published in 2016.
These new principles, shown below, have informed the identification of the governance issues
recorded within this document for the 2016/17 financial year.







Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law,
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement,
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental
benefits,
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes,
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it,
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management,
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Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective
accountability.

3.

What we said we were going to improve during 2016/17

3.1

Significant progress has been made in each of the areas identified, in the AGS 2015/16, for
development during 2016/17 as monitored throughout the year by the Joint Independent Audit
Committee (JIAC) of South Yorkshire’s Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable.
The following summarises the progress made in each area.

3.2

Effectiveness of the Joint Corporate Governance Framework including regional structures,
systems, processes and procedures: the location and scope of this work has evolved through
the year, principally in response to the changing nature of the Force’s collaborative
relationships. The Regional Collaboration Board, for Yorkshire and the Humber, determined
that no further action would be taken in relation to a region wide review of the governance
arrangements. However the JIAC requested that further work should be undertaken to
understand the effectiveness of the regional governance arrangements before being able to
provide the PCC and CC with the necessary assurances. This specific issue was included
therefore within a wider review of the effectiveness of the corporate governance arrangements.
Good progress has been made in relation to Financial Regulations, which are shared with
Humberside Police, and the Force and OPCC have been working together on the
implementation of Codes of Governance in response to the CIPFA “Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework” 2016. The effectiveness of these Financial
Regulations will be considered during 2017/18.

3.3

The Hillsborough Inquests: the Inquests’ conclusions were returned on 26th April 2016. It was
determined that the deaths at Hillsborough were the result of unlawful killing and that fan
behaviour did not contribute to the disaster. The Force has received significant numbers of
civil claims. Handling and financing arrangements, including working with the Home Office to
look at further grant funding, have been progressed by the Commissioner. In relation to
criminal proceedings, investigations led to files going to the Crown Prosecution Service
towards the end of 2016 and decisions are awaited.

3.4

Child Sexual Exploitation: the Force has attracted a lot of national media attention centered
around the Professor Alexis Jay OBE report of August 2014 on child sexual exploitation in
Rotherham between 1997 and 2013 and the Louise Casey report of February 2015 into
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council. In response it has placed significant additional
resources in the Public Protection Unit to investigate and combat this. It continues to work with
the National Crime Agency and, in addition, is in the process of conducting a full review of the
demand in the Protecting Vulnerable Persons function as a basis for redesigning its service
delivery model in this area.

3.5

HMIC Recommendations: the Force’s PEEL assessments for 2015 found “Legitimacy” to be
good but both “Effectiveness” and “Efficiency” were judged to require improvement. Whilst the
Force has procedures in place to ensure that reports are appropriately responded to, given
the level of the assessments here it was felt that these should be recorded as a significant
governance issue. The Organisation responded by boosting resources in the Performance
Team and undertaking a complete review of the Force’s performance framework. These
initiatives, taken together with the Deputy Chief Constable’s personal involvement in
overseeing work in this area will give a robust framework within which to increase scrutiny,
hold to account and drive improvements across all business areas.

3.6

Peer Review: at the beginning of 2016/17 the Deputy Chief Constable of Lancashire
Constabulary led a peer review of the Force in support of the work of the Interim Chief
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Constable, Dave Jones. The remit was broad and covered culture, leadership, ethics, integrity,
organisational learning and various operational issues. The Force has worked during 2016/17
to implement the recommendations as appropriate including the revised approach to the two
yearly staff survey launched in November, 2016. Progress with the overall review will be
bolstered by the newly strengthened Business Change function.
3.7

Atlas Court: the Force had been unable to reduce waiting times for members of the public and
police officers when contacting its call handling centre, essentially due to a dependence on
old, ineffective and unstable computer systems and persistent problems with staff recruitment
and retention. Significant progress was made during the year. An Internal Audit was
commissioned and all recommendations were implemented, including those relating to the
testing of fall back facilities and the on-going monitoring of issues. New infrastructure and
software was procured and is on track to go-live by March, 2018. Work continues, in liaison
with peer support forces, to better understand both current and future service demand, training
capacity is being examined to enable accelerated recruitment and new staff engagement
arrangements are being established as a means to bolstering staff morale and attendance.

3.8

Legal Services: the Department has experienced significant resourcing problems which have
been exacerbated by rising demand in the area of child sexual offences preventative orders
and, towards the end of 2015/16 by the retirement of the Joint Head of Legal Services for
South Yorkshire and Humberside Police. The Service now has a new Joint Head of Legal
Services and in addition two new solicitor posts have been established.

3.9

Crime Data Integrity: Following national HMIC Crime Data Integrity (CDI) inspections there is
a requirement that all forces include CDI on their force strategic risk register. In addition, the
Chief Constable chose to record this matter on the Force’s AGS in recognition of the potential
for the lowering of standards of service and reputational damage from inaccurate recording.
Amongst other measures the Force has created an Incident Management Team to review
classifications and has conducted a substantial awareness raising campaign led by the Chief
Constable to improve recording standards.

3.10

Workforce Planning Data: accurate and timely workforce planning data is vital for financial
planning and service delivery. It is essential that this be fully aligned to financial management
information such that informed decisions can be made in relation to recruitment and workforce
reduction measures. By the end of 2016/17 the Assistant Chief Officer (HR) had concluded a
comprehensive consultation and engagement exercise to deliver an up to date Workforce Plan
which was integrated with the Force’s Strategic Plan.

3.11

Strategic Planning / Savings Plans: whilst the Force has traditionally been very effective in its
budget setting processes, savings identification and medium term planning it recognised that
work was needed to better align resourcing, including staffing, to strategic and operational
priorities. Short term action has been taken to stabilise the Force’s finances, which included
underspending in 2016/17 to provide assistance to support the 2017/18 budget. Longer term,
the Force now has a new corporate planning process, a workforce plan, revised strategic
priorities and, crucially, a new, enhanced and fully populated Business Change and Innovation
function headed by a newly created Assistant Chief Constable post. The lead provided by this
new resource will ensure a closer alignment of resources to priorities going forward.
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4.

How we manage our business and the roles of those responsible

4.1

Public Accountability Board (PAB): at the centre of the PCC’s governance arrangements is a
public-facing governance meeting, the Public Accountability Board (PAB). This meeting now
occurs monthly and is where most of the PCC’s ‘holding to account’ arrangements come
together. The PCC receives formal reports from the Force and others on a range of areas in
which the CC must be held to account. These areas are programmed in for the performance
and financial year ahead. PAB is chaired by the PCC and attended by the CC and his chief
officer colleagues. During 2016/17, PAB operated on a 6 weekly cycle, with agendas, papers
and minutes published in line with the PCC’s commitment to openness and transparency.

4.2

Chief Constable: the CC is responsible for maintaining the corporate governance
arrangements for the Force. He is assisted in this by a chief officer team sitting as the Senior
Leadership Group (SLG). The CC personally signs the Annual Governance Statement and,
with SLG assistance, monitors progress throughout the year, primarily by reviewing and
agreeing as appropriate, all Action Plan reports prior to their submission to the JIAC.

4.3

Senior Leadership Group: rather than operate a separate Governance Board the CC has
chosen to oversee governance arrangements using the SLG which formally considers Annual
Governance Statement Action Plan reports on a two monthly basis.

4.4

Director of Finance: this post holder is the CC’s Chief Financial Officer, has a statutory
responsibility to ensure the proper financial administration of the Force and takes the lead on
governance related matters including agreeing all reports prior to their submission to the CC
and SLG. The Director of Finance, together with the CC, personally signs the Annual
Governance Statement.

4.5

The Joint Independent Audit Committee (JIAC): the PCC and CC have an established Joint
Independent Audit Committee. This has the objective of assuring, supporting and challenging
the work of the PCC and Force, so enhancing public trust and confidence in their governance.
The Committee receives regular reports on internal control and governance related matters,
including strategic risks so that it may monitor, challenge and review the CC’s control
measures to ensure their currency, completeness and effectiveness.

4.6

The Independent Ethics Panel (‘IEP’): the PCC, with the full support of the CC, established an
Independent Ethics Panel to ensure that the police are acting with integrity and upholding high
professional standards. The Panel provides the PCC and the Force with independent
assurance and effective challenge, particularly in relation to the embedding of the Code of
Ethics into culture, policies and practices. Whilst progress has been made in embedding the
Code of Ethics within the Force there is still more work to be done. The PCC has asked the
Panel to focus on supporting the CC in delivering cultural change within the Force during
2017/18.

4.7

Internal Audit: the PCC and the CC jointly employ an internal audit service. This is provided
by Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council’s Head of Internal Audit whose officers have full
access to the PCC’s and Force’s staff and financial documentation. The Service is responsible
for testing and compliance work to ensure that management controls are sufficiently effective
and robust so as to prevent, detect and deter error, fraud and corruption. The Head of Audit
attends the PCC’s Monthly Senior Management Team Meetings, and reports to the JIAC.

4.8

External Inspection Bodies: Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) independently
assesses police forces and policing activity in the public interest, ranging from neighbourhood
teams through to serious crime and the fight against terrorism. HMIC provide the information
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to allow the public to compare the performance of their force against others and their evidence
is used to drive improvements in the service to the public.
4.9

Collaboration: the Strategic Partnership with Humberside Police is overseen through a Joint
Collaboration Board. Regional collaboration with Humberside, North Yorkshire and West
Yorkshire is governed through the Regional Collaboration Board. There is a strong push from
government for the emergency services to collaborate. The Police and Crime Act (2017)
mandates collaboration with the Fire and Rescue Services and allows PCCs to take on the
Fire and Rescue service as well as the police. The PCC has set up a joint committee with Fire
and Rescue to pursue together all possible ways of working better as a partnership.

5.

Review of effectiveness of the Joint Code of Corporate Governance framework
including compliance with the Joint Code of Corporate Governance

5.1

The CIPFA “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework” and the
associated “Guidance Notes for Policing Bodies in England and Wales” both became effective
during 2016/17. In updating the Force’s Governance Framework, to ensure compliance with
this new regulation, officers of the Force and OPCC have reviewed governance arrangements.

5.2

The PCC has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of
the governance arrangements. In addition, the review of effectiveness of the system of internal
control (systems and processes) is informed by the work of the internal auditors, the managers
within both the Force and the OPCC and the JIAC. It is also informed by the comments
received from external auditors, and other agencies and takes account of the 2015/16
improvements identified.

5.3

Officer Assurance Certificates were completely redesigned and new guidance issued for
2016/17. These have been completed by SLG members, district commanders and
departmental heads. Concerns are fully considered and reflected in the “Significant
Governance Issues”.

5.4

The Head of Internal Audit’s opinion is attached at Appendix A for both the PCC and Force.

5.5

In addition to the above formal review, assurance is provided throughout the year by:








5.6

The work of the Joint Governance Group in bringing to life good governance
principles for the PCC and CC.
The work of the JIAC in monitoring the Force’s progress in managing those
significant governance issues identified in the AGS 2015/16,
The risk management process managed by the SLG and overseen by the JIAC,
Internal audit reviews, advisory reports and progress and follow-up reports,
Performance monitoring arrangements,
The role of the Professional Standards Department which has a formal Control
Strategy to prioritise its work,
Reviews by other agencies such as HMIC (whose assessments of all forces are
published on its website) and external audit.

Of particular significance is the new CC’s work in 2016 in implementing the “Force’s Plan on
a Page”. This work, concluded in 2016/17, gives the Force a very clear direction. Work
continues into 2017/18 in relation to refining the underpinning performance and accountability
framework.
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6.

Significant governance issues

6.1

The following matters, scheduled in the Annual Governance Statement 2015/16, have been
closed. These have either been discharged during 2016/17 or, on review, are now seen to
have clear and robust management arrangements in place such that they no longer represent
a weakness in governance.
• Hillsborough Inquests
• Child Sexual Exploitation
• HMIC
• Peer Review
• Legal Services
• Crime Data Integrity
• Workforce Planning Data

6.2

The matters raised in relation to Legal Services and Workforce Planning Data have now largely
been addressed. The Crime Data Integrity matter is being retained but in a broader context
(see 6.4). Hillsborough and CSE have been recorded in the past because of their scale and
importance, however, on review it is clear that the Force has invested significant energy and
resource in these areas and is doing all that it reasonably can, from a strategic governance
perspective, to manage the required work. This rationale applies also to the Peer Review and
HMIC matters. Whilst the content of the associated reports has often been uncomplimentary
the Force now has the correct infrastructure in place to ensure that all such findings are
professionally and appropriately responded to.

6.3

The following matters scheduled in the Annual Governance Statement 2015/16 are still current
in 2017/18:
• Review of the Joint Corporate Framework
• Atlas Court
• Strategic Planning / Savings Plans

6.4

The following new matters were identified in 2016/17 and will, with those scheduled at 6.3, be
managed in 2017/18.
• Data Quality : there are duplicate nominals in the Force’s crime data, together with delays in
crime recording, and in the area of HR there are still a significant number of vacancies from
posts which need deleting.
• Internal Audit reports have insufficient priority given to them in terms of completing agreed
action plans. JIAC have formally commented to the Chief Constable.
• Partnership working: the Force needs to review and reconstruct its partnerships structure to
be clear on strategic intents, ownership and responsibilities. Such arrangements need
capturing in a register of partnerships.
• Gaps have been identified, during the year, in health and safety arrangements particularly
in relation to fire assessment processes.
• Demand Management: the Force needs to have a better overall understanding of the current
and predicted demand for its services.
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6.5

For the purpose of this report, all of the above matters are considered “significant”, which is
defined as:
A recommendation requiring action necessary to avoid exposure to a significant risk to the
achievement of the objectives of the system under review.

7.

Annual Governance Action Plan

7.1

Attached at Appendix B is the CC’s Annual Governance Action Plan for 2017/18.

8.

Looking Forward/Current Issues

8.1

The 2016/17 financial year has been a difficult period for the Force, however, it now has a
new Chief Constable, a largely new Senior Leadership Group, an established PCC re-elected
in May 2016 and a new sense of direction supported by appropriate resourcing in key areas
such as business change, performance and governance.

9.

Statement of the Chief Constable and Director of Finance

9.1

We propose over the coming year, 2017/18 to take steps to address the above matters to
further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address
the need for improvements identified in the review of effectiveness. We will monitor their
implementation and operation during the course of the year through the Chief Constable’s
Senior Leadership Group and feed this into the next annual review.

Stephen Watson
Chief Constable

Nigel J Hiller FCPFA FCCA
Director of Finance

Date: 26th September 2017

Date: 26th September 2017
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Head of Internal Audit’s Internal Control Opinion – Appendix A
PCC
In summary the results of Internal Audit work relevant to forming an internal control opinion
are:





Of the 4 completed pieces of work, 3 (75%) received a positive opinion and 1 (25%)
received a negative opinion, i.e. limited;
70% of recommendations made were either Fundamental or Significant;
The progress in implementing recommendations has been good;
Half of the recommendations related to the adequacy of controls.

These are overall positive results although based on relatively limited coverage. However,
work in the early part of the year reviewing and advising on the arrangements to undertake
the annual governance review and the preparation of the annual governance statement,
influenced other planned work later in the year. In particular the ‘health check’ piece of work
was no longer required.
As mentioned previously, the year has again seen some exceptional workloads and priorities
arising from matters largely out of the direct control of the OPCC.
The Committee should be assured that access to officers in the OPCC was good throughout
the year. This has ensured Internal Audit has been aware of issues arising to be able to reschedule work and provide support in other ways namely around the AGS process, risk
management (alongside the Force), the Strategic Partnership Programme and the review and
development of the OPCC’s financial and HR procedures.
Force (CC)
In summary the results of Internal Audit work relevant to forming an internal control opinion
are:





Of the 11 completed pieces of work, 8 (73%) received a positive opinion, and 3 (27%)
received a negative opinion, i.e. limited;
61% of recommendations made were either Fundamental or Significant, a slight decrease
from 69% in 2015/16;
41% of recommendations related to the adequacy of controls, a decrease from 61% in
2015/16;
The progress in the implementation of past recommendations was generally poor
throughout the year with a significant number outstanding for extended periods and having
a number of revised dates.

In addition to the work undertaken by the South Yorkshire Audit Team, a regional piece of
work has been undertaken by the Humberside Internal Audit Team. This relates to the
performance management arrangements for the Regional Scientific Support Unit. The review
concluded with reasonable assurance (medium risk). A total of 10 recommendations have
been made, 6 categorised as significant and 4 as merits attention. None of the
recommendations relate specifically to South Yorkshire. The final report has been issued to
ACC Forber.
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Overall, the number and nature of audit findings and recommendations made during the year
reflect an improved picture from 2015/16, and therefore it is appropriate to highlight this as a
positive. This positive perspective has however been undermined somewhat with the general
delay in the implementation of past recommendations made as covered in the section above.
As has been discussed at the Committee previously, the delay in implementation has not in
my view been due to any benign neglect but rather a combination of initially optimistic dates,
clearly an impact from senior management changes and workloads and the consequences of
other decisions (such as the suspension of the Strategic Partnership Programme, the Peer
Review undertaken and new systems being delayed). Although there are understandable and
indeed acknowledged reasons for the delay in most cases, the fact remains that any prolonged
postponement in implementing recommendations clearly has a bearing on the effectiveness
of the underlying control framework.
The SLG has openly acknowledged that improvements are needed to ensure audit
recommendations are implemented within reasonable and appropriate timescales. A new
more rigorous process has been adopted to ensure the appropriate member of SLG ‘signsoff’ the recommendations and dates in the first instance, but then also approves any
subsequent change of dates. JIAC will also invoke their ability to ask the appropriate SLG
Officer to attend a JIAC meeting to provide explanations for any delay.
Contextually, it is important to acknowledge that the significant senior management changes
during the year, and the implications of this, has clearly had an impact on the general ability
and capacity in certain areas to maintain a fully effective control framework, whether this has
been from changes in existing or new systems, project and programme work and the
underlying theme of considerable and often competing workloads. In periods of change and
transformation it is not unexpected that some aspects of control, procedure and policy
compliance are weakened in the pressure and need to keep operational functions working.
This situation has been accepted and acknowledged by senior management who have
provided positive responses to the audits undertaken. In turn, the nature of the relationship
with senior management has meant that in a number of instances Internal Audit support has
been requested specifically because there is a recognition that improvements are required or
to assess the extent of compliance. This reflects a continued high level of awareness amongst
the SLG and other senior managers of the importance of an effective framework of controls
and the desire to ensure one exists and is complied with. As such, this positive attitude,
openness and commitment to improvement has been taken into account in this narrative.
As can be seen from the analysis in the tables above, almost a third of areas audited resulted
in a limited (negative) assurance opinion. Two of these areas were however in relatively
narrow, confined aspects of activity (case management for a particular crime type and the
management of CCTV). The other related to a serious but specific control issue identified that
was corrected immediately.
Discussions with the SLG and senior managers have provided assurances that there is a
commitment and focus to ensure an effective framework of controls is in place across the
Force. In a period of significant change and exceptional circumstances, it is perhaps
understandable that management attention has been directed to other areas over the last 12
months. The new stability within the Senior Leadership Team should provide an improved and
consistent focus to matters of control, risk and governance.
In overall terms the current position in relation to the internal control environment is adequate
relevant to the areas reviewed during the period. The historic problem in implementing audit
recommendations has not been adequate however.
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Risk Management
Internal Audit work in relation to risk management during the year has been largely advisory
through attendance at OPCC and SLG meetings where risk has been discussed. Both the
OPCC and SLG of the Force have reviewed their respective strategic risk management
arrangements and implemented a revised format for the risk registers that has provided senior
management with better information and basis for challenge and assurance.
Work specifically with the SLG during the autumn resulted in the development of a new
approach to strategic risk management and a focus on governance overall. This new
‘organisational infrastructure’ (OI) approach is now being implemented reflecting a significant
change in the culture of risk management and the general approach to governance
accountabilities.
Given this development it is appropriate to comment positively on the direction now being
taken that should prove beneficial to SLG and the wider Force in during the current financial
year.
By attending the PCC’s senior management team regularly during the year and SLG, Internal
Audit has seen the positive approach taken to risk management at that senior level. The
developments mentioned above will further strengthen this over the course of the year. In that
regard, albeit without undertaking any specific review work, I can provide a positive assurance
opinion in relation to risk management.
Governance
In the circumstances prevailing during the year, with changes within the SLG, and the Chief
Constable specifically, little Internal Audit work has been specifically directed at the
governance arrangements within and between the OPCC and Force. It is fair to say that this
has been somewhat a ‘moving feast’ and therefore Internal Audit input has again been
advisory.
Internal Audit are aware that significant work has been undertaken in the latter part of the year
to review and revise the framework of governance between the PCC and CC. This has
culminated in the revised ‘Holding to Account’ framework to which Internal Audit contributed
and forms a part moving forward.
General
As well as reflecting on the work undertaken in 2016/17 it is important to highlight some of the
areas of risk the OPCC and Force are likely to face and the implications on controls, risk and
governance.
The biggest factors likely to place a risk on the PCC’s and CC’s ability to maintain an adequate
and effective control, risk and governance framework are the continuing financial pressures
and therefore achieving the agreed budget savings, coupled with the change/transformation
programme. Both the OPCC’s SMT and the Force’s SLG will need to be focussed on
implementing the necessary changes whilst ensuring an appropriate and effective control and
governance framework – i.e. ‘staying safe’.
The acknowledgement and acceptance that there is scope to improve the overall oversight
and management of strategic risk and the framework of internal controls is a considerable
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positive. This further demonstrates the Force’s openness and general appetite to change and
improve key aspects of strategic governance.
The 2017/18 Internal Audit Plan aims to support the Senior Management Teams through this
change programme as well as focus on particular areas of activity and responsibility identified
as higher risk. Of particular focus is the adoption of the new organisational infrastructure
approach mentioned above. This new approach has implications on the 2017/18 audit plan
which will need to be revisited and reviewed in the light of work currently being undertaken.
The Committee will receive reports on this during the year.
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SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE

APPENDIX B

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE ACTION PLAN 2016/17
SIGNIFICANT
GOVERNANCE
ISSUE

Proposed action

Officer
Responsible

Estimated
Timescale

Review of the
Joint Corporate
Governance
Framework

Light touch review of the
effectiveness of delegations /
consents, Financial Regulations
and Contract Standing Orders.

OPCC Head
of
Governance

30th
September,
2017

Actual
Timescale

Update

See OPCC Action Plan

Updated local Code of
Governance
Atlas Court

A combination of factors has
meant that there has been an
inability to reduce waiting times for
members of the public and police
officers when contacting the
Force’s call handling centre. The
causes
are
staffing
and
technology based where, for the
former, recruitment and retention
is problematic. For the latter the
Function
is
dependent
on
essentially old and unstable
computer
systems.
Control
measures are in place for both
aspects including a funded capital
programme project to implement
new telephony systems.

ACC
Business
Change and
Innovation

The detail of this issue is being managed by
the Force’s Strategic Leadership Group, in
consultation with the Joint Independent Audit
Committee of South Yorkshire’s Police and
Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable,
using the Force’s Risk Management process.

Director of
Finance.
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SIGNIFICANT
GOVERNANCE
ISSUE

Proposed action

Officer
Responsible

Estimated
Timescale

Strategic
Planning /
Savings Plans

The Force has a robust revenue
budget setting process and a
successful record in
implementing identified savings
and in forecasting future year
expenditure requirements, likely
income and anticipated funding
gaps. However, it has yet to fully
determine changes in service
delivery and hence supporting
resourcing. Work is needed in
this area to ensure that future
years’ saving plans are
appropriate, detailed and
underpinned by comprehensive
workforce planning data.

Director of
Finance

October,
2017 and
the drafting
of the
2018/19
revenue
budget

Data Quality

This issues comprises the two
strands of Crime Data Integrity
and HR data.
Crime Data Integrity: following
national HMIC Crime Data
Integrity (CDI) inspections there is
a requirement that all forces
include CDI on their force
strategic risk register. In addition,
the Chief Constable has chosen to
record this matter on the Force’s
AGS in recognition of the potential
lowering of standards of service
and the further damage that could
be done to the Force’s reputation

Actual
Timescale

Update

Excluding legacy issues the Medium Term
Resource Strategy is largely balanced for
2018/19 but there is still considerable work to
be done for subsequent years. Central to this
work will be new Business Change and
Innovation Team and a transformational IT
programme which will facilitate business redesign and changed service delivery.

The detail of this issue is being managed by
the Force’s Strategic Leadership Group, in
consultation with the Joint Independent Audit
Committee of South Yorkshire’s Police and
Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable,
using the Force’s Risk Management process

ACC Local
Policing

66

Status

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
SIGNIFICANT
GOVERNANCE
ISSUE

Proposed action

Officer
Responsible

Estimated
Timescale

Actual
Timescale

Update

should the Organisation fail to
record crime accurately.

Responding to
Internal Audit
Reports

HR Data: despite recent
improvements the Force still
operates with several sets of HR,
Finance and Duty Management
Systems (DMS) based records.
Greater consistency and better
integration is needed, amongst
these, to improve the quality of
decision making.

Assistant
Chief Officer
(Human
Resources)

Experience has shown that
officers responsible for functions
which have been subjected to
audit, and for which
recommendations have been
made, are prone to agreeing
unrealistic implementation dates.
As a consequence dates are
often not met and so revised.
The Audit Committee, which has
consistently raised its concerns in
this area, escalated these to the
PCC and Chief Constable during
2016/17.

Director of
Finance

Internal Audit reports span a full range of
operational and support functions. The
timeliness of responding to recommendations
is monitored on a quarterly basis by the Audit
Committee which holds the Director of Finance
accountable for performance in this area. He
has invested a significant amount of time
towards the end of 2016/17, in particular, in
personally ensuring a timely resolution of
overdue actions. All affected areas of the
Force are now well aware of future
expectations in relation to audit
recommendations.
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SIGNIFICANT
GOVERNANCE
ISSUE

Proposed action

Officer
Responsible

Partnership
Working

The Force needs to review and
reconstruct its partnership
structure to ensure clear strategic
intents, ownership,
communication and
responsibilities so that results are
delivered in an integrated way.

ACC (Local
Policing)

Fire Assessment
Processes

Gaps have been recognised in
health and safety arrangements
particularly in relation to the Fire
Risk Assessment (FRA)
Programme.

Assistant
Chief Officer
(Human
Resources)

Estimated
Timescale

Actual
Timescale

Update

At the heart of the Chief Constable’s reforms
has been the creation of a new strategic
direction captured within the “Plan on a Page”.
Partnership Working is one of the eight
“foundations of our success” and full details of
the approach are being developed.

October,
2018

Resourcing problems, including
the long term absence of the
Principal Health and Safety
Officer have been addressed with
two appointments. In October
2017, an Assistant H & S Advisor
commenced in post on a two year
fixed term contract followed in
November 2017 by a further
Assistant H & S Advisor on a 12
month secondment.

Prior to the new appointments there were, as at
October, 2016 7 FRAs in date and 49 to
complete. As at June, 2017 there are 28 FRAs
in place and 26 outstanding. The estimated date
by which for all FRAs will be in date and then
subject to ongoing review is October 2018.
The Health and Safety Advisor states that
…“The Assistant Health and Safety Advisors
are also now implementing, Fire Log Books
and Fire Action Plan’s (to track
recommendations in Facilities Management
and at Districts/Departments) at each site and
in conjunction with other stakeholders are
undertaking a further programme of work on
evacuation across the SYP Estate and updating
the Bomb Evacuation process at the request of
ACC Forber (via Business Managers) at the last
Force Security Meeting.”
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SIGNIFICANT
GOVERNANCE
ISSUE

Proposed action

Officer
Responsible

Demand
Management

The Force needs a better overall
understanding of the current and
predicted demand for its services.

Assistant
Chief Officer
Business
Change and
Innovation

There is now a Demand
Management Strategy and
Strategy Delivery Plan supported
by a Demand Management Lead
Officer managing a team of six
Business Analysts and one Data
Analyst. The overall aims of the
work are to understand current
demand, predict future demand,
reduce organisational demand
and use demand management
information to inform decisionmaking on the allocation and
deployment of resources.

Estimated
Timescale

Actual
Timescale

Update

To date the Team’s focus has been on
understanding demand. This, and the
prediction and subsequent assessment of
resource implications, is being identified as a
‘theme’ in each of the major change initiatives
underway in the Business Change and
Innovation Department, namely the Atlas Court
Review, the Crime Review and the Local
Uniform Policing Review. To this end the
Function has :
In progress

-BC&I Demand Management Strategy
developments (e.g., demand prediction).

Completed

-Produced a PVP resource model to inform
decision-making on that business area’s
staffing structure

Completed

-Mapped the sources of demand (external,
internal, repeat, failure) into Call Handling and
Force Crime Bureau (FCB). An FCB resource
model is also under development

23rd June
2017

-Begun development of a Response Policing
resource model

30th July
2017

-Scheduled Neighbourhood Policing Needs
analysis work to commence in July 2017
Completed

In progress
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-Completed a Strategic Overview of Crime
Volume Demand showing volume demand
across the entire Crime business area.
In addition, SLG has introduced monthly
Prevention and Demand Reduction meetings,
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SIGNIFICANT
GOVERNANCE
ISSUE

Proposed action

Officer
Responsible

Estimated
Timescale

Actual
Timescale

Update

Status

chaired by ACC Hartley to manage policing
demand from a front-line operational
perspective promoting and utilising problem
solving approaches.

Key to “Status” ratings as reported to JIAC on 27th September, 2016:
Green: successful implementation of the actions appears probable and there are no major issues that at this stage appear to threaten delivery significantly.
Amber: successful implementation of the actions appears feasible but existing issues require significant management attention. These appear resolvable and,
if effectively addressed, should allow delivery.
Red: Successful delivery of the project is in doubt. There are major risks or issues apparent in a number of key areas. Urgent action is needed to ensure
these are addressed, and to determine whether resolution is achievable.
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Accrual
The concept that income and expenditure is recognised as it is earned or incurred, not as cash
is received or paid.
Actuarial Gain or Loss
The change in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because either events have not coincided
with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains or losses), or
because the actuarial assumptions have changed.
Amortisation
The writing down of an asset over a period of time in order to charge the revenue account for
the usage of the asset.
Assets
Items of worth which are measurable in monetary terms. Current assets are ones that change
in value on a day to day basis whereas fixed assets are assets which yield benefit to the PCC
for a period of more than one year.
Budget
A statement defining in financial terms an organisations plans over a specified period.
Capital Expenditure
Spending on the acquisition of assets or spending which adds to and not merely maintains the
value of an existing asset.
Capital Receipt
Proceeds from the disposal of land or other capital assets which may be used to reduce debt or
to finance capital expenditure, but cannot be used to support revenue expenditure.
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
The accounting body that provides accounting guidance to the public sector. The guidance
provided by CIPFA is defined as proper accounting practice and has statutory backing.
Creditor
Amounts owed by the PCC for works done and goods or services received for which actual
payments had not been made by the end of the financial year.
Current Service Cost (Pensions)
This measures the increase in the present value of pensions liabilities generated in the financial
year by employees. It is an estimate of the true economic cost of employing people in the
financial year, earning service that will eventually entitle them to the receipt of a lump sum and
pension when they retire.
Debtor
Amounts due to the PCC for works done and goods or services supplied for which actual
payments had not been received by the end of the financial year.
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
Retirement benefits are defined independently of the contributions payable and benefits are not
directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded.
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Depreciation
The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset
arising from age, wear and tear, deterioration or obsolescence.
Earmarked Reserves
Amounts set aside for a specific purpose in one financial year and carried forward to meet
expenditure in future years
Expected Rate of Return on Pensions Assets
This is a measure of the average rate of return expected on the investment assets held by the
scheme for the year. It is not intended to reflect the actual realised return on the scheme, but a
longer-term measure, based on the value of assets at the start of the year and an expected
return factor.
Finance Lease
A lease that transfers all the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee. Assets
held in this way by the PCC appear on the PCC’s Balance Sheet and are accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
Financial Instrument
This is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of
another. The term covers both financial assets such as loans receivable and liabilities such as
borrowings.
General Fund Balance
The General Fund Balance is the description given in the Code to those reserves held by The
PCC that are not earmarked for specific purposes and is more commonly described as General
Reserves.
Government Grants
Assistance by Government and inter-governmental agencies and similar bodies in the form of
cash or transfers of assets to a PCC in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions
relating to the activities of the PCC.
Gross Book Value
The value of an asset before deducting depreciation and impairment.
Impairment
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its carrying amount on the Balance Sheet.
Intangible Fixed Assets
These are fixed assets such as software licences that do not have physical substance, but are
identifiable and controlled through legal or custody rights.
Interest Costs (Pensions)
The expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move one year
closer to being paid.
Liabilities
Amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at some point in the
future. Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the balance sheet date.
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Net Book Value
The amount at which fixed assets are included in the Balance Sheet, that is their historical or
current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.
Operating Leases
A lease where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset remain with
the lessor.
Outturn
Actual income and expenditure for the financial year.
Past Service Cost (Pensions)
These costs represent the increase in liabilities arising from decisions taken in the current year
to improve retirement benefits, but whose financial effect is derived from years of service earned
in earlier years.
Provisions
Sums set aside to cover a liability that is likely to be incurred, but the amounts or date on which
the cost will arise is uncertain.
Reserves
A reserve is an amount set aside for a specific future purpose in one financial year and carried
forward to meet expenditure in future years.
Revenue Expenditure
Expenditure on day to day running costs incurred by the Chief Constable on behalf of the PCC
in the provision of services
Treasury Management
The management of the PCC’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.
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